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APPEARANCES

For Taxpayer:

FRANK L. MUNCY,
W. R. WALLACE, Jr.

For Commissioner:

ARTHUR L. MURRAY, Esq.

Docket No. 777

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OP INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DOCKET ENTRIES
1943

Feb. 17—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer

notified. Fee paid.

Feb. 17—Coj^y of petition served on General Coun-

sel.

Mar. 17—Answer filed by General Counsel.

Mar. 17—Request for hearing at San Francisco

filed by General Counsel.

Mar. 19—Notice issued ])lacing- ])roceedino- on San
Francisco, Calif., calendar. Service of

answer and request made.
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1943 Docket Entries— (Continued)

Oct. 14—Hearing set Nov. 22, 1943—San Francis-

co, Calif.

Nov. 22—Hearing had before Judge Arundell. Peti-

tioner's coiuisel moves to continue to next

San Francisco calendar. Motion granted.

Motion filed. Appearance filed—W. R.

Wallace, Jr.

1944

Aug. 10—Hearing set Sej)t. 18, 1944—San Francis-

co, Calif.

Sej)t. 20—Hearing before Judge Van Fossan on

merits. Submitted. Briefs due Nov. 4,

1944. Replies 12/4/44.

Oct. 14—Transcript of hearing 9/20/44 filed.

Nov. 1—Brief filed by taxpayer. 11/6/44 Co})y

served.

Nov. 4—Brief filed by General Counsel. vSen^ed

11/6/44.

Dec. 1—Reply brief filed by taxpayer. 12/1/44

Copy served.

1945

Feb. 12—Findings of fact and ()])inion rendered.

Van Fossan, J. Decision will be cntiMvd

uiidcM* Rule 50. C()})y s(m*v(h1.

Mar. 3—C()m])utati()n of dcficifMicy \\\v(\ by Gcmi-

ei'al Counsel.

Mar. 10—Hearing set 4/11/45 on settlement.

Apr. 9—Consent to settlement filed by taxpayer.

A])r. 11—Decision entered. Van Fossan, J., Div. 9.

July 5—Bond in \\w sum of $6,444.94 approved

and ordered filed.
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1945 Docket Entries— (Continued)

July 5—Petition for review by U. S. Circuit

Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit, filed by

taxpayer, with proof of service thereon.

July 5—Designation of record filed by taxpayer

with proof of service thereon.

July 5—Affidavit of service by mail of petition for

review and designation of record filed.

The Tax Court of the United States

Docket No. 777

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OP INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PETITION

The above named petitioner hereby })etitions for

a redetermination of the deficiency set forth by the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his notice of

deficiency IRA :90-D-HOB dated December 9, 1942,

and as a basis of his proceeding alleges as follows:

1. The petitioner is a cor])orati()n organized and

existing under the laws of the State of Cailfornia.

The principal office of the corporation is at One
Montgomery Street, San Francisco, California. The

•Page numbering appearing at top of page of original certified
Transcript of Record.
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\

returns for the period here involved were filed
j

with the collector for the first district of California.

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which is
|

attached and marked exhibit A) was mailed to the

petitioner on December 9, 1942. I

3. The taxes in controversy are income and ex-

cess profits taxes for the fiscal year ended May 31, i

1941 in the total amount of $3,222.47. '

4. The determination of tax set forth in the said I

notice of deficiency is based upon the following I

errors

:

i

(a) The Commissioner of Internal Reveiuie here-
I

inafter referred to as the "respondent'' erred in
;

determining' a deficiency in the ])etitioner's income J

tax for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1941 in the
\

amount of $2,9f)2.15 or in any other or lesser
j

amount. [2]

(b) The respondent erred in determinins: a de-

ficiency in the ])etitioner\s excess ])rofits tax for the .

fiscal year ended May 31, 1941 in the amount of i

$1,270.32 or in anv other or lesser amount. <

(c) The respondent curved, when, in refcri'inu' to

certain payments made to membe]- mills as addi-

tional I'ealization on sales of shook sln])])(Ml, ]w i

stated ''^ * * distributions * * * constitute a divi-

dend paid out of the ])rofits of the coi'poi-ation and
;

is not deductible".
\

(d) The res])on(lent erriMl when he stattnl, eon-

cerning the payments to membe]* mills of additional

realization that ***** x,) biiulinu' obligation to

make such payments was in existence bet'oi'e the I

j)rofits were earned''.



Commissioner of Internal Revenue 5

(e) The respondent erred in disallowing a re-

serve for claims against defective shook in the

amount of $4,000.00

5. The facts ui)on which the petitioner relies as

the basis of this proceeding are as follows:

(a) The petition w^as organized as a non-profit

association for the purpose of conducting export

trade at cost in behalf of its members. The associa-

tion was availed of to handle the foreign trade of

the respective members, chiefly to simplify the

preparation of export documents and to eliminate

the necessity of individual members keeping in

touch with foreign exchange fluctuations, and sim-

ilar details of export trade. Further, it has been

the policy of the association to settle with its mem-

bers on the basis of a preliminary billing price for

shook furnished, with the definite understanding

that any excess received from the sale of shook over

expenses would be subject to distribution as addi-

tional realization on shipments made during the

period when such excess was accumulated. This in-

tention is specifically expressed in the minutes of

meeting held July 29, 1940. [3]

The exporting of box shook to customers in

South Africa and European ports naturally would

prolong the accounting upon any such shipment.

Due to the disturbed world market the petitioner

has been unable to function as smoothly with its

long range customers, particularly where claims or

allowances are involved. The Association intended

from its ince])ti()n to operate on a non-pi-ofit basis.

By dealing with its member mills on a preliminary
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billing basis, the Association management was able

to operate without assessing the member mills. Had
the Association ])aid out inunediately to the mem-

ber mills the exact amount of the ex})ected realiza-

tion on each cargo shij)nient, there would have been

no funds to i)r()vide for claims, allowances, losses

or any other contingencies, other than by assessing

the member mills as tlie need arose. The petitioner

recognizes the necessity of some woikiim capital and

was content to pay tax on a limited amount of un-

distributed additional realization as was manifest

by the tax assessed by the original returns filed.

The petitioner maintains that its transactions with

its respective members has been at arms length and

that it has the right to adjust the preliminary billing-

])rice when the final realization is determiiuMl on

each cargo shipment within the taxable year. The

assertion of this right is in harmony with tlie prac-

tice existing in normal business traiisactions be-

tween buyer and seller.

In the case of the Midland Coo])erative Whole-

sale 44 BTA 824, the opinion states:

u* * * rj^i^^^ Treasury (le])ai'tment, however, as

])oint(Hl out in Fi'uit (1 rowers Supply Co., 21 BTA
315, 82(); affd., ^(i Fed. (2d) f)(), with \i?reat lib-

erality' has allowed such deductions *to the end

that substantial justice may be done to an associa-

tion which is engaged in coo])e7'ative niai'keting or

])urchasing work but which may n(>t be exem])t

fi-om taxation'. The justication f'oi' the I'ulinu- rests

U|)on the fact that the so-called dividends are in

realitv rebates upon the business transacted bv the
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association with its members ratlier than true in-

come to the association * * *"
[4]

(b) The reserve for claims against possible loss

on mouldy or defective shook, overcharges, re-

bundling, freight adjustments, etc., has been dis-

allowed by the respondent on that grounds that the

amount was indefinite, unsettled, and lacking in

proof. Petitioner has paid or allowed, subsequent

to the close of fiscal year ended May 31, 1941,

$1,329.68 applying against a portion of the anti-

cipated loss claim. Certain items are yet to be fully

determined and petitioner contends that the orig-

inal reserve is a fair estimate of the liability which

will ultimately be i)aid or allowed to the customers.

Wherefore, the petitioner prays that this Court

may hear the proceeding and

(a) Determine that there is no deficiency in the

petitioner's income tax for the fiscal year ended

May 31, 1941

;

(b) Determine that there is no deficiency in the

petitioner's excess profits tax for the fiscal year

ended May 31, 1941.

(Sgd.) FRANK L. MUNCY,
Counsel for the Petitioner.

State of California,

County of San Francisco—ss.

Ward A. Dwight, being duly sworn, says that he is

President of American Box Shook Exj)ort Associa-

tion, the petitioner above named and as such officer

is authorized to verify the foregoing petition, that

he has read the foregoing ))etition and is familiar
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with the statements contained therein and that the

statements contained therein are true.

(Sgd.) WARD A. DWIGHT

Subscribd and sworn to before me thLs lltli day

of February, 1943.

(Sgd.) LEONTINE E. DENSON,
Notary Public for California

My commission expires August 12, 1943. [5]

EXHIBIT A
Form 1232 SN-IT-3

Office of

Internal Revenue Agent in Charge

San Francisco Division

IRA:90-D-HOB
(C:TS:PD
SF:WGW)

Treasury Department

Internal Revenue Service

74 New Montgomery Street

San Francisco, California

December 9, 1942

American J^ox Shook Export Association

407 Crocker Building

San Francisco, California

Gentlemen:

You are advised that the detei'iniiiation of your
j

income tax liability for the taxable yeai* ended May i

31, 1941 discloses a deficiency of $1,952.1.") aiid that

the (let(M-mination of your excess-profits tax liability
|

for the yeai- mentioned discloses a deficiency of
\

$1,270.32 as shown in the statement attached.
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In accordance with the provisions of existing

internal revenue laws, notice is hereby given of the

deciencies mentioned.

Within 90 days (not counting Simday or a legal

holiday in the District of Columbia as the 90th

day) from the date of the mailing of this letter, you

may file a petition with The Tax Court of the

United States for a redetermination of the de-

ficiencies.

Should you not desire to file a petition, you are

requested to execute the enclosed form and forward

it to the Internal Revenue Agent in Charge, San

Francisco, California, for the attention of Confer-

ence Section. The signing and filing of this form

will expedite the closing of your return by per-

mitting an early assessment of the deficiencies and

will prevent the accumulation of interest, since the

interest period terminates 30 days after filing the

form, or on the date assessment is made, whichever

is earlier.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING
Commissioner,

(Signed) By F. M. HARLESS
Internal Revenue Agent in

Charge.

Enclosures

:

Statement

Form of waiver.

(In. RR) [6]
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STATEMENT
San Francisco

IRA :90-D

HOB
(C:TS:PD

SF:WGW)

American Box Shook Exi)ort Association,

407 Crocker Biiildinir,

San Francisco, California.

Tax Liability tor the Taxable Year Ended May 31. 1041

Liability Assessed Deficiency

Income Tax $4,067.07 $2,114.92 $1,952.15

Excess profits tax 2,566.78 1,296.46 1,270.32

In makinjj: this determination of your income and excess

profits tax liability, careful consideration has been ^jiven to your

protest dated May 30, 1942 and to the statements made at the

conferences held on July 15, 1942, October 6, 1942, and October

8, 1942.

A copy of this letter and statement has been mailed to your

representatives, Mr. Frank L. ^luncy, 1 ^lontfromery Street. San

Francisco, California, in accordance with the authority con-

tained in the power of attorney executed by you and on file in

this office.

ADJUSTMENTS TO XOR^LVL TAX NET INCOME

Net income as disclosed ])y return $13,317.66

Unallowable deductions and additional income:

(a) Distribution to stockholdei-s $ 7,559.11

(b) Incori)oration expense 335.71

(c) Accountinj? fee 150.00

(d) Reserve for claims 4,000.00 12,044.82

Total $25,362.48

Nontaxabh' income and additional deductions:

(e) Franchise tax $ 159.30

(f) Capital stock tax 660.00 819.30

Net income adjusted $24,543.18
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EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENTS

(a) On or about May 31, 1941 you distributed, out of your

net income, amounts agtrre^atino^ $7,559.11 to certain lumber

mills, that were stockholders, or that had subscribed to your

stock. You claimed the above-mentioned amount as a deduction.

The distribution was based upon the board feet of box shook

shipped by each mill. No binding obligation to make such pay-

ments was in existence before the profits were earned. It is held

that the above-named amount constituted a dividend paid out of

the profits of the corporation and is not deductible.

(b) Incorporation expense of $335.71 claimed as a deduction

in your return is disallowed as not being an ordinary and neces-

sary business expense.

(c) An accounting fee of $150.00 claimed as a deduction in

your return, representing expense incurred by American Box
Shook Export Association (unincorporated), another taxpayer,

is disallowed as not being an expense deductible by you since it

was the expense of another taxpayer.

(d) On your income tax return you claimed a deduction of

$4,000.00 for an alleged loss respecting box shook shipped by
you to a foreign port, on the alleged grounds that the customer

contended that said shook was mouldy. No part of the above-

mentioned amount has been paid, nor has proof been submitted

that you have allowed the claimant any part of said amount. On
the basis of the information available it is held that the amount
is not deductible.

(e) State Franchise tax of $159.30 accrued for the taxable

year ended May 31, 1941, is allowed as a deduction in your

return.

(f) Capital stock tax of $660.00 accrued for the taxable

year ended May 31, 1941, is allowed as a deduction in your

return.

COMPUTATION OF TAX

Declared Value Excess-Profits Tax:

Net income for declared value excess-profits tax com-

putation $24,543.18

Less: 10 per cent of $350,000.00, value of capital

stock as declai'ed in your c'a])ital stock tax return

for the year ended June 30, 1940 35,000.00

Balance subject to declared value excess-profits tax.... None
Dechired value excess-profits tax assessable None
Declared value excess-profits tax assessed None
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Income Tax

:

Net income for declared value excess-profits tax com-

putation $24,543.18

Less: Declared value excess-profits tax None

Normal tax net income $24,543.18

Portion (not in excess of $5,000.

taxable at 13.5%) $15,000.00 at 13.5% $ 675.00

Portion (not in excess of $20,000.

taxable at 15%) $15,000.00 at 15% 2,250.00

Portion (in excess of $20,000.

taxable at 17%) $ 4,543.18 at 11% 772.34

Total income tax $ 3,697.34

Income defense tax (10% of $3,697.34) 369.73

Total income and income defense taxes assessable $ 4,067.07

Income tax assessed

:

Orip^inal, account Au^'. 1941 No. 410041—First Cali-

fornia District 2.1 14.!)2

Deficiency of income tax $ 1,952.15

AD.JUSTiMENTS TO EXCESS-PKOFITS NHT 1\(M)MF
COMPrTATION EXCESS-PROFITS CREDIT BASED
ON NET INCOME

Excess-profits net income computed undci' income cre-

dit method, as disclosed by return $11,202.74

Increase

:

(a) Net increase in normal tax net

income $11,225.52

Decrease

:

(b) Additional income tax 1,952.15

Net increase 9,273.37

Excess-i)i'()fils net income computed under income

credit nii^thod, as adjusted $20,476.11
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EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENTS

(a) The net increase in normal tax net income is explained

in the foregoing.

Total increases $12,044.82

Total decreases 819.30

Net increase $11,225.52

(b) Additional deduction of $1,952.15 is allowed for addi-

tional income tax as computed in the foregoing.

ADJUSTMENT TO EXCESS-PROFITS CREDIT-
BASED ON INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
5-31-37 5-31-38 5-31-39 5-31-40

Excess-profits net income

as reported on the re-

turn $ 0.00 $ 108.53 $(6,242.44) $ 2,682.25

Increase: (a) 1,089.32 1,244.08 None 13,328.85

Total $1,089.32 $1,352.61 $(6,242.44) $16,011.10

Decrease: (b) Income Tax 163.40 202.89 None 1,870.67

Excess-profits net income

as adjusted $ 925.92 $1,149.72 $(6,242.44) $14,140.43

Net aggregate of above (excluding 1939 deficit) $16,216.07

Average base period net income—general average for 4

years (l^ of $16,216.07) $ 4,054.02

(c) Average base period net income

—

Increased earnings in last half of base period $ 5,404.59

95% of average base period net income

(95% of $5,404.59) $ 5,134.36

(d) Net capital addition $1,008.29

(e) Net capital reduction $ 100.19

8% of net capital addition $ 80.66

6% of net capital reduction 6.01

Net addition 74.65

Excess-profits credit—based on income $ 5,209.01
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KXPr.AXATIOX OF ADJUSTMENTS

(a) It is noted that you were orjjanized on March 26, 1940

and on Juno 1, 1940 you took over tlie business of a predecessor

association which had operated in an unincorporated status.

Under the i)rovisions of section 740 (d) (1) of the Internal

Revenue Code, as an accjuirin^ corporation your base period is

the forty-eip:ht months preceding the beginning of your taxable

year ending May 31, 1941.

In determining the base period income, allocation is made
of tlie net income of the predecssoer association for the calendar

year to a fiscal year to conform with your fiscal year ending

.May 31.

Year ended May 31, 1937

Net income:

7/12 of $344.04 (1936 net income) $ 200.69

5/12 of $2,132.71 (1937 net income) 888.63

Total net income $1,089.32

Amount reported _ None

Increase $1,089.32

Year ended :\Iay 31, 1938

Increase

:

7/12 of $2,132.71 (1937 net income) $ 1,244.08

Year ended May 31, 1939

Net income (Loss) as reported $(6,242.44)

No change recommended.

Year ended May 31, 1!)40

Net income (Loss) $(3,712.13)

Net increase in taxable not income 13,328.87

Net income as adjusted $ 9,616.74

Add: 1939 net operating loss included in above in-

come now olimina1o(l 15,346.47

Actual net income for period January 1, 1940 to

May 31, 1940 $24,963.21

Deduct: 1939 net operating loss prorated

—

7/12 of $15,346.47 8,952.11

Net income as adjusted $16,011.10

Income reported 2,682.25

Increase $13,328.85
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(b) Deduction for income taxes for the ])ase period years is

computed in accordance with section 30.742-1 (b) (5) regulations

103, as tIiou<?h the unincorporated association were a corpora-

tion.

(c) The amount of increased earnings in the last half of the

base period is computed as follows

:

Deficit May 31, 1930 $(6,242.44)

Earnings May 31, 1940 14,140.43

Net aggregate of last half of base period $ 7,897.99

Earnings May 31, 1937 $ 925.92

Earnings May 31, 1938 1,149.72

Net aggregate of first half of base period 2,075.64

Net increase $"5^82273^

Average ($5,822.35 divided by 2) $'2,91118

Net aggregate of last half 7,897.99

Total $10,80917

Above amount divided by number of months in second

half of base period multiplied by 12

($10,809.17 )

time 12 $ 5,404.59

( 24 )

(d) Under the provisions of section 743(b)(1) of the In-

ternal Revenue Code contributions of capital made prior to the

acquisition of the component corporation are disregarded in

computing the net capital addition of such component cor-

poration.

The net capital addition is computed on the basis of cash

contributed in payment of capital stock as follows:

6-24-40 $ 345.00 at 341/365 $ 322.32

9-18-40 155.00 at 255/365 108.29

9-24-40 310.00 at 249/365 211.48

10-11-40 155.00 at 232/365 98.25

12-31-40 155.00 at 151/365 64.12

1-31-41 620.00 at 120/365 203.83

$1,740.00 $1,008.29

Net capital additions $1,008.29
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(e) The net capital reduction allowable to you as an acquir-

ing corporation is based upon the refund of capital investments,

as follows:

2-14-41—1 membership of $345.00—

(106/365 times $345.00) $ 100.19

The cancellation of subscriptions on May 28, 1041 is not re- |

stored to capital stock account since the amount was not re-

funded until June 30, 1941 which is not within the taxable year i

ended May 31, 1941.
|

COMPUTATION OF EXCESS-PROFITS TAX

Excess profits net income $20,476.11

Less

:

j

Specific exemption $5,000.00 '

Excess-profits credit 5,209.01 10,209.01
;

Adjusted excess ])rofits net income $10,267.10

I*ortion not in excess of $20,000. taxable at 25% !

$10,267.10 Tax at 25% $ 2,566.78 j

Correct excess-profits tax liability $ 2,566.78

Excess-profits tax assessed:

Orij^inal, Aug. 1941, Account No. 400007

First California District 1,296.46

Deficiency in excess-profits tax $ 1,270.32

[Endorsed]: T.A.U.S. Filed Feb. 17, 1943.

[Title of Tax Court and Canse.]

ANSWER

Comes now the Coniniissioner of Inteiiial Rev-

enue, respondent al)(>ve named, by his attorney, d.

V. Wcnciiel, Chief Counsel, lUireau of internal
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Revenue, and for answer to the petition filed by

the above-named petitioner, admits and denies as

follows:

1. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 1 of the petition.

2. Admits the allegations contained in para-

grai)h 2 of the petition.

3. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 3 of the petition.

4. (a) to (e), inclusive. Denies that the deter-

mination of tax set forth in the notice of deficiency

is based upon errors as alleged in paragraph 4 and

subparagraphs (a) to (e), inclusive, thereunder, of

the petition.

5. (a) For lack of information and belief denies

all material allegations contained in subparagraph

(a) of paragraph 5 of the petition. [14]

(b) For lack of information and belief denies all

material allegations contained in subparagraph (b)

of paragraph 5 of the petition.

6. Denies generally and specifically each and

every allegation in the petition not hereinbefore ad-

mitted, qualified, or denied.

Wherefore, it is prayed that the Conmiissioner s

determination be approved and the petitioner's ap-

])eal denied.

(Signed) J. P. WENCHEL TMM
Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue.
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Of Counsel:

ALVA C. BAIRD,
Division Coiuisel.

ARTHUR L. MURRAY
T. M. MATHER,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

[Endorsed] : T.C.U.S. Filed Mar. 17, 1943. [15]

[Title of Tax Court and Cause.]

4 T. C. No. 90

Docket No. 777

Promulgated February 12, 1945

The petitioner was organized under the general

corporation laws of California. Neither its ai'ticles

of incorporation nor its by-laws noi* any contract

required that amounts received in excess of cost be

distributed to its members on a i)atronage basis.

No amounts were distributable excei)t u])on action

))y the board of directors. Held, (1) petitioner is

not a true coo])erative and is subject to tax u])()n

its income; (2) j)etitioner is not entitled to a deduc-

tion for amounts actually distributed during the

year.

W. R. Wallace, Jr., Escj., and Frank J^. Muncy,

C.P.A., (or the petitioner

Arthur L Murray, Esc}., foi* the I'espondent

Tlie respondent determined (h'licicncies in inconu*

and exc(\ss-})rotits taxes against American Box

Shook Export Association for its fiscal yeai* endcnl

May 31, 1941, as follows:



Commissioner of hiternal Revenue 19

Income tax $1,952.15

Excess profits tax 1,270.32

The principal issue now in controversy is whether

any of the amounts received by the petitioner dur-

ing the year in question are taxable [26] to it as

its income. In the event this issue is decided in the

resi)ondent's favor, a second issue is presented,

whether the sum of $7,559.11, paid by the petitioner

to its members during the taxable year, may prop-

erly be deducted from gross income.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The petitioner is a corporation organized on

March 26, 1940, under the general corporation laws

of the State of California. Its income, declared

value excess profits and defense tax return and its

excess profits tax return for the year involved were

prepared on the accrual basis and were filed with

the collector of internal revenue for the first dis-

trict of California on August 15, 1941.

The petitioner was organized to succeed an un-

incorporated association of the same name, which

was organized in 1935.

The petitioner is a sales organization engaged in

the purchase of box shook, i.e., unassembled ])arts

of wooden boxes, exclusively for ex[){)rt ])urposes.

During the year in controversy, it i)urclia8(Hl shook

from its member-stockholders only. It has twelve

such members, all of whom are associations engaged

either in the manufacture or distribution of lumber

products, or both. The shook so purchased bv the
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l)etitioner was sold by it to its customers in foreign

countries.

The petitioner does not make purchases from its

members ui)on any standard rate or price basis.

When an order for shook is placed by a foreign cus-

tomer, the petitioner first obtains the necessary data

from the customer, including information as to

specifications, shipping schedule and quantity. It

then contacts its members to ascertain the ''mini-

mum [17] satisfactory price'' at which the members

would agree to handle the ])articular order.

These negotiations with the members usually are

not reduced to writing. The ])etitioner conducts its

business with its members in an informal manner,

much of it being handled by telephone.

After it obtains the minimum })rice at which the

members will ])roduce the shook, the petitioner en-

deavors to secure a higher price from the customer.

This usually amounts to an additional margin of

from 8 ])er cent to 10 ])er cent of the original

''minimum'' price. It is added to provide against

unforeseen items of expense.

The members bill the petitioner for shook sold on

the basis of the "minimum" piice and the ])eti-

tioiier settles with them currently on that basis at

a discount. This is done since the final i)rofit from

the ti'ansaction cainiot be determined for some time

owing to the distances which the products must

travel and the unforeseen ('X})enses which may
arise.

Neithci' tlie articles of incorpoi-ation noi- the by-

laws of the j)etitioner require that amounts received
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by it in excess of the cost of the goods sold should

be distributed to its members upon any i)atronage

basis. There is an understanding, however, between

the petitioner and its members that any amounts

received in excess of actual cost, with the exception

of amounts placed in a reserve for anticipated

claims, is to be returned to them.

At the close of the fiscal year the directors de-

termined the amount of profits which could be dis-

tributed without endangering the [18] reserve fund.

These amounts were distributed to the members

upon the basis of the amount of board feet of shook

which each shipped during the year.

On or about May 28, 1941, the petitioner made

distributions to its members out of earnings of that

year totaling $7,559.11.

In its income tax return the petitioner reported

total income of $50,865.03 and net taxable income

of $13,317.66. It did not include in its gross income

either the amounts distributed to the members dur-

ing that year nor the sum of $4,000 entered in its

books as a reserve for anticipated claims. It now

concedes the non-deductibility of the latter item in

the event it is determined that the corporation is

taxable.

OPINION

Van Fossan, Judge:

The fundamental issue before us is whether the

petitioner had any taxable income of its own or

whether its income was actually, at all tinuvs, the

income of its members. In the event our determina-

tion of this issue is adverse to the ])etitioner a
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further issue arises, namely, whether the petitioner

is entitled to a deduction in the amount of the dis-

tributions made to its members on May 28, 1941.
|

There may be some question whether the first-
|

stated issue was i)roperly raised in tlie i)leadings. l

Although the respondent directed attention to the
|

alleged defect at the hearing, no motion to amend •

the petition was made and the respondent conse-

quently contends that the issue is not pro])erly be-

fore the Court. However, we do not choose to [19]
|

rest our decision on the possible defect in the plead-
|

ings for, assuming that the issue was })roperly
j

raised, the petitioner can not be sustained. i

The petitioner relies on no specific statutory j)ro-

vision for exemption but asks us to find that it was \

merely an agent foi* its members,—a mere conduit ]

through which the income flowed,—and that all its j

earnings were in reality the ])ro])erty of its mem-
bers and not its own taxable income. This we can

not do.

The petitioner was organized under the general
j

corporation laws of California, not under the stat- 3

utes ])roviding for cooperative associations. Xo
j

exi)lanation was given for this action. The statutes 1

under which an association is organized are not

controlling, however, if it is actually organized and !

o])orates as a true cooperative. Eugene Fruit Grow- -

ers Association, 37 B.T.A. 993; United Cooi)era-
|

tives, Inc., 4 T. C. 93. In order to be a tiue co- !

operativ(\ there must 1)(* a Icual obligation on the
;

part of tlie association to I'eturn to the j)roducers,

o n a i)atronage basis^ all funds received in excess
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of the cost of the goods sold. Such an obligation

may arise from the association's articles of incor-

l)oration, its by-laws, or some other contract. Mid-

land Cooperative Wholesale, 44 B.T.A. 824.

Here we find no evidence of such a legal obliga-

tion. There was no provision in either its articles

or by-laws requiring the petitioner to distribute all

its profits to its members on a patronage basis.

Neither were there any express written contracts

wdth the members to that effect. The most we find

was an '"understanding" between the peti- [20]

tioner and its members that all sums received in

excess of the cost of selling the shook and in ex-

cess of the amounts placed in the reserve for an-

ticipated claims, should be returned to the members.

It does not appear, however, that this under-

standing was carried out in practice. During the

year in controversy the petitioner made distribu-

tions to its members of $7,559.11 and had in its re-

serve the sum of $4,000. Yet it reported a taxable

income, after deducting both of these items, of

$13,317.66. What disposition was to be made of

this amount, we do not know. There is nothing in

the record to show that it could not be used for the

payment of dividends on the stock, or for any other

purpose. Other than the amounts actually dis-

tributed to the members, of which we shall speak

later, there is nothing to show that the ])etitioner's

earnings were not its own which it could use for any
ordinary corporate purpose.

In suppoi-t of its contention, the petitioner relies

l)rincipally upon San Joaquin Valley Poultry Pro-
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clueors' Association v. Commissioner, 136 Fed. (2d)

382. However, the facts in that case were materially

different from those before us. There the petitioner

was organized under the Agricultural Code of Cali-

fornia, which i)rovided that ''Associations organ-

ized (under Chapter 4 thereof) shall be deemed

'non-])rofit', inasmuch as they are not organized to

make i)rofit for themselves, as such, or for their

members, as such, but only for their members as

producers." The petitioner's articles of incor])ora-

tion provided that it ''shall conduct and carry on

its business without profit to itself." Its by-laws

l^rovided that it *'is organized as a non])rofit co-

operative association"; [21] and that **The *net

proceeds' resulting from the operation of the busi-

ness, if any, shall belong to the members."

The petitioner in that case engaged in the busi-

ness of marketing eggs for its members and selling

su]Ji)lies to its members and others. It did not ])ay

its members the entire net proceeds of the eggs that

it marketed for them but retained certain amounts

which it placed in three reserves, crediting to the

members the ])roportionate share of each in the

sums so retained. It was the amounts so retained

which the res})ondent sought to tax.

The Court held that the sums in question were

not the ])ro])erty of thc^ ])etitioner but were that of

its members; that to hold otherwise would be to

hold that the petitioner could and did make a profit

for itself in contravention of its by-laws, its ai'ticles

of incorporation, and the statute to which it owes

its (wistence. It was ])ointed ont that the petitioner
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never pretended to be the owner of the sums but as

required by its by-laws, prorated and credited them

to its members. The court concluded that, since

none of the sums ever belonged to the petitioner,

they could not be, and were not, its income.

Here, however, as we have noted, neither the

statute under which it was incorporated, its articles

of incorporation, its by-laws nor any other contract

forbade the petitioner from having income of its

own. Under such circumstances, it can not be said

that the petitioner's income was actually that of its

members.

We turn, therefore, to a consideration of whether

or not the i)etitioner is entitled to deduct from its

gross income those amounts which [22] it actually

distributed to its members during the year in ques-

tion. Deductions are available to taxpayers only by

virtue of statutory provisions. Not every payment

out of income creates a legal deduction. Here again

the answer turns upon whether or not the right of

the members to these amounts arises by reason of

the corporate charter or by-laws or some other con-

tract, and is not dependent upon some subsequent

corporate action taken by the officers or directors.

United Cooperatives, Inc., supra; Midland Coopera-

tive Wholesale, supra. The petitioner contends that

such a right inhered in its members and that it is

entitled to the deduction. The respondent asserts

that the petitioner was muler no legal obligation to

make the payments and that the distributions were in

the nature of dividends, hence not available as sta-

tutory deductions.
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As we have indicated above, there was nothing in

the petitioner's articles of incor])oration or by-laws

imposing upon it the obligation to distribute its ex-

cess revenue among its menibers. The (piestion is,

therefore, narrowed to wliether or not such an ob-

ligation existed because of some other contract or

contracts between the ix'titioiier and its members.

The petitioner contends that such a contract ex-

isted by virtue of the ''undci'standing'' between the

])etitionei' and its members that they were to n^-

ceive all the profits in excess of cost and the addi-

tions to the reserve. This contention is not borne

out by the evidence. The testimony shows that it

had originally been contemplated that excess rev-

enue should be distributed by way of dividends on

the stock. At a [23] meeting of the stockholders,

held May 6, 1940, a motion was made tliat the by-

laws be amended to eifect the distribution of excess

revenue among the members u])on th(» basis of the

dollar value of shipments made by each member.

This amendment was never ])nt into effect, it wa>

finally decided that the basis for distribution, ])ro-

])osed in the motion, was not ])racticable and that

*'th(^ only fair method of distribution" was upon

the ])asi.s of board feet of shook ship])e(l by each

member. However, no formal action in this regard

was ever taken.

It is apparent from the record also that no

amounts were distributable to the members without

])ri()r action on the ])art of the ])etitioner\s board

of directors. This is shown by the following excer])t
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from the minutes of tlie meeting of the Association

held July 29, 1940:

Attention was further called to the fact that

the Association had been set up as a non-profit

organization with the understanding that any-

excess received from the sale of shook over ex-

penses would, u])on action of the organization,

be subject to distribution as additional realiza-

tion on shipments made during the period when

such surplus was accumulated. [Emj)hasis sup-

plied.]

This was likewise the understanding of the peti-

tioner's members. One of the witnesses, who was

general manager of a member association and a

director of the petitioner, testified as follows:

* * * We invoiced the American Box Shook

Export Association at the minimum price, and

that is all we did until later, if I would attend

a meeting of the Export Association and as a

director of the Association learn that it was

contemplated paying another dollar per thous-

and to certain shipments, then I would go back

to our office and set up a debit against the As-

sociation.

The taxpayer points to no statute authorizing the

claimed deductions. Ch^arly they are not deductible

exjjenses. The petitioner was under no obligation

to make distributions to its members until the board

[24] of directors had so acted. Whether the pay-

ments were in the natui*e of dividends \\v lu^ed not

decide. J]ut see Fontana Power Co., 43 B.T.A.
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1090, affirmed 127 Fed. (2d) 193; Juneau Dairies,

Inc., 44 13.T.A. 759. We are of the opinion that

the petitioner is not entitled to the deduction in any

event and that the respondent's determination nui^t

be susained.

Decision will be entered under Rule 50. [25]

The Tax Court of the Tnited States

Washington

Docket No. 777

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DECISION

Pursuant ot the Court's Findings of Fact and

Opinion, pronuilgated Februaiy 12, 1945, the re-

spondent having filcMl a reconiputatioii of tax on

March 3, 1945, and the jx'titioncr havinu tiled an

acquiescence in said i-iM-oniputatioii on Ap]-il \\

1945, it is

Ordered and DcM-ided: That thei'e ai"(* deticiencies

in income tax and excess-proiits tax in the respec-

tive amoimts of $1,952.15 and $1,270.32 for the fiscal

year ended May 31, 1941.
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Entered April 11, 1945.

(Signed) ERNEST H. VAN FOSSAN
Judge. [26]

Before The Tax Court of the United States

Docket No. 777

In the Matter of

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

Room 401, Civic Auditoriiun,

San Francisco, California

September 20, 1944—9 :30 a.m.

(Not pursuant to notice.)

Before: Honorable Ernest H. Van Fossan, Judge.

PROCEEDINGS

The Clerk: At this time we call Docket No. 777,

American Box Shook Export Association.

Mr. Murray : Ready for the Respondent.

The Clerk: Will you state your appearances for

the record, please?

Mr. Wallace: For the I'etitioner, W. R. Wallace,

Jr., and Frank L. Muncy.
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Mr. Murray: For the Respondent, Arthur L.

Murray.

Mr. Wallace: Shall I proceed with the o])ening

statement, Your Honor?

The Court: What is the name of the second

gentleman ?

Mr. Wallace: Muncy, M-u-n-c-y; Frank L.

Muncy.

The Court: You may proceed with the openin^^

statement.

OPENING STATEMENT ON J^EHALP OF
THE PETITIONER

By Mr. Wallace

Mr. Wallace: If Your Honor i)lease, the Peti-

tioner in this matter is a California corporation,

organized on March 26, 1940, to succeed an unin-

corporated Association of the same name, whicli in

turn was organized in 1935. The corj)oration and

its predecessor Association were both registered

under the Webb-Pomerene Act to j)ermit the cor-

poration to engage only in the export trade. [30]

As stated upon its tax return, its sole and only

business w^as the ex])orting of lunibei' pioducts f(U-

its various member uiidei' the conditio]) of the

Webb-Pomerene Act.

The corporation, dui'inu- the taxable year nnd

since, has had twelve members. x\ll of those mem-

bers are engaged either in the Tnanufacture or in

the sale of lumber and lumbei* products, or in both

the mainifacture and sale.
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It made no purchases of lumber or lumber prod-

ucts from any but its members. We don't have a

case where there is some business with members

and some business with non-members.

The tax here involved is for the fiscal year of

June 1, 1940 to May 31, 1941. The Commissioner

has levied an additional tax on two principal items.

The first is an item of $7,559.11, which the cor-

poration paid to its members during the fiscal year

as additional realization on shipments made during

that year, and the second is the sum of $4,000,

w^hich was set up on the books of the corporation

as a reserve for anticipated claims.

There are three questions involved in the case.

The first and broad question is whether a cor-

I)oration whose sole business is to export lumber

products for its members without profit is subject

to a tax at all, or whether its income is not the in-

come of its members and to be taxed to them under

the doctrine of the San Joaquin Valley Poultry

[31] Producers Association cases, and the California

Pine Box Distributors case, and other similar cases.

If this first question should be answered in the

affirmative by the Tax Court, the other questions

are of no consequence. If the first question, how-

ever, should be answered in the negative, then there

are two other questions which arise.

The first of those questions is. Was the specific

sum of $7559.11, which was i)aid by the corporation

to its members during the fiscal year as additional

realizations on sales, properly excluded from the in-
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come tax returns filed by tlu^ corporation as income

of the corporation?

The second question relates to tlie })ossible tax

upon an item of $4,000 set up on the books of the

corporation as a reserve for anticipated claims.

With respect to this last item, the only question

raised by the Respondent Conmiissioner is whether

the claims have been received and allowed during

the taxable year. It is ai)])arent, of course, that if

the corporation is taxable at all, a bad debt or claim

deduction can be asserted in the following year, and

in the following year the claims were actually al-

lowed and paid. We therefore agreed with counsel

for the government to waive any contest on the tax-

on the $4,000 item for the fiscal yeai' in question, in

the event that it be determined that tlu^ corporation

is taxable at all. [32]

Coming just for a moment to the pleadings. The

government has admitted the first three ])aragra])hs

of the petition, that is, it has admitted the cor])orate

status of the petitioner, the notice^ of deficiency, and

that tlu^ taxes are taxes foi* the liscal yviw ending

May 31, 1941. All the other allegations of the })eti-

tioner liave Ix^en denied.

There are a couple of other niino]* matters that

I think 1 shouUl cleai* in the ph'adings befoi-e we

proceed.

On Page 2 of tlu^ deficiency notice is the cxphma-

tion as to the adjustments made by the Commis-

sioner. The first has to do with the $7559.11 item,

which was disallowed, and the exphuiatioii in that

respect, to quote the hotter, **No binding obligation
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to make such payments was in existence before the

profits were earned.'' That presumably being the

Commissioner's position.

The item marked (b), ineori)oration expense of

$335, we are making no contest about at all, so that

may be disregarded.

The item marked (c), accomiting fee of $150, we

also make no contest about. That may be disre-

garded.

The item marked (d), which is the $4,000 item set

up to cover anticipated claims I just referred to in

the opening statement. We will have no contest on

that.

The other two items referred to, paragraphs (e)

and (f), have been allow^ed, and there is no contest

on those [33] items.

The Court: Mr. Murray.

OPENING ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF
THE RESPONDENT

By Mr. Murray:

Mr. Murray: If Your Honor please, I would like

to call attention to the fact that, according to my
understanding, the matter of the taxable status of

this corporation was not pleaded. That is why in

the 90-day letter, as counsel has stated, the reason

given was that no binding agreement was in exist-

ence, referring only to the $7559.11 item, which was

claimed as a deduction, as an addition to cost of

goods sold, so I submit that there has been no issue

of that kind raised in the i)k'adings at all, so that

is something new.
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It is true that the goveriinient's position, answer-

ing fully the contentions of the tax})ayer\s repre-

sentatives up to now has been tliat this item whicli

they distributed to their sliar(»holders during tlie

taxable year is not an allowable deduction on any

basis. As a matter of fact, tlicy nscnl it as a cost of

goods sold, as an additional deduc^tion, and \\v liave

denied that, and those are the issues as I under-

stand them in this ease.

Mr. Wallace: If I may just make a remark as

to that^

I call counseTs attention to Page 2 of the ])(»ti-

tion, and on that l)age, ])aragraph 5 states: [34]

'^The j)etitioner was organized as a n()n-])i'ofit

Association for the purpose of conducting export

trade at cost in behalf of its members.''

That seems to be the first fact wliicli was to be

relied upon. The second is that:

*'The Association was availed of to handle the

foreign trade of the respective members, chieiiy to

sim])lify the preparation of export documents and

to eliminate the necessity of individual members

keeping in touch with foreign exchange fluctua-

tions, and similar details of export ti'ade. Fui'ther,

it has been the policy of tlie Association to settle

with its members on the basis of a })reliminary bill-

ing price for shook furnished, with th(^ definite un-

derstanding that any excess received fi'om the sale

of shook over expense would be subject to distribu-

tion ius additional realization o!i shipments made

during the })eriod when such excess was ac-

cumulated. * * *''
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The Court : Those statements appear in the para-

graph which deals with tacts in the petition?

Mr. Wallace: That is correct, Your Honor. I

refer to them now only as a preliminary to what

I was about to say.

It is true, as counsel for the government has sug-

gested, that as the i)etition was drawn the objec-

tions urged in the petition

The Court (Interposing) : You mean the errors

alleged? [35]

Mr. Wallace : I beg your pardon ?

The Court: You mean the errors alleged?

Mr. Wallace: The errors alleged in the petition

are referred to the additional assessments. There

is no question of that. The W'hole petition is di-

rected toward the additional assessments.

The Court : Will you run over again the several

paragraphs of the errors alleged, and indicate

which ones are contested and w^hich are not?

Mr. Wallace: Yes, Your Honor.

The Court : On Page 1 of the petition.

Mr. Wallace: The first three paragra})hs of the

petition are not contested by the government. They

have been admitted in the pleadings. The paragraphs

in the petition numbered 4, 5

The Court : I understand they have been denied.

Mr. Wallace: They have been denied.

The Court: I understood you to say, though,

that some of these errors were not in issue?

Mr. Wallace: Yes, Your Honor.

Now, coming to that, if Your Honor will tui-n in

the petition to Page 2 of the letter attached to

it
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The Court: Let us look at the petition itself.

How about error 4(a)? Is tliat in issue?

Mr. Wallace: That is in issue, Your Honor, and

4(b) is in issue, and 4(c) is in issue, and 4(d) is

in issue.

4(e), Your Honor, is not in issue, excei)t that it

is our contention that, as a non-profit organization,

the petitioner was not taxable at all.

If the Tax Court should liokl that the i)etitioner

was taxable at all, then the specihc question of a

tax ui)on this $4,000 item is not in dis])ute as be-

tween us.

The Court: Will you proceed with the evidence?

Mr. Wallace: Mr. Hudson, ])lease.

Whereupon,
j

C. D. HUDSON I
»

called as a witness for and on behalf of the Peti- .,

tioner, having been first duly swoiii, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examhiation
|

The Clei'k : May we have your nam(\ ])lease, sir? '^

The Witness: C. D. Hudson.
j

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Where do you reside, Mr. Hudson? -

A. Washington, D. C. 5

Q. What is your business?
^

A. J am manager of the Amci'icaii I>ox Sliook

Export Association, and manager of the National
\

Wooden J>ox Association. ?t

Q, The first company referred to, the Amciican
;
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(Testimony of C. D. Hudson.)

Box Shook Export Association is the taxpayer in-

volved in this litigation'? [37] A. It is.

Q. How long have you been the general man-

ager of the American Box Shook Export Associa-

tion? A. Since its organization.

Q. When was that?

A. It was first organized in 1935 as an unin-

corporated, non-profit Association, and then in 1939

the corporation was formed under the same name.

Q. And you have continued as general manager

from incepiton to date? A. I have.

Q. And you were general manager during the

taxable year here in question, the June 1, 1940 to

May 31, 1941? A. Yes.

Q. What is the business of the petitioner cor-

poration ?

A. The exportation of box shook, primarily, and

to date, solely. We might export other lumber

products, but the volume has been confined to box

shook.

Q. Do you do any domestic business?

A. None whatever.

Q. Have you ever done any domestic business?

A. No.

The Court : For the purposes of the record, what

is a shook?

The Witness : It is component ])arts of a wooden

box [38] before assembly, merely aii unassembled

wooden box.
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(Testimony of C. D. Hudson.)

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. How many members are there in the peti-

tioner eor])oration'? A. Twelve.

Q. Can you list those members for us?

A. New England Box Company—Do you wish

the addresses?

Q. I don't think it is important. I wish you

would just, when you are listing them, state whether

they are manufacturers or sellers of hnnber, or

both ? A. Yes.

Mr. Murray: May I ask whether this list which

you are giving are the members of this Association

before the Court, or the other Association which

you referred to?

The Witness: Members of the American Box

Shook Export Association, Incorporated, and now

before the Court.

New England Box Com])any, manufacturers; E.

H. Barnes Company, manufacturers: Western l^ine

Mfg. Co., Ltd., manufacturers; the Brewer Pine

Box Company, manufacturers; the White Pine

Sash Comi)any, manufacturers; Ewauna Hox Com-

])any, manufacturers; the Kestei-son Corporation

—

1 believe tliat is

Mr. Wallace: Lumber Corporation?

The Witness : Lumb(M- Corporation, mamifac-

turers; the \\\»yerliaeus(M- Sal(\s Company, a sales

organization. [39]

The Court: Is that Weyca-haeuser?

The Witness: Yes, W-e-y-(»-i"-li-a-e-u-s-e-r?

The Aniei'lcan Wox Corjxnation, manufacturers

I
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and sales organization; the Western Pine Box Dis-

tributors, sales organization; the California Pine

Box Distributors, sales organization; the Dwight

Lumber & Box Co., sales organization.

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. So that the record will be clear, will you

state what you mean by a sales organization'?

A. An organization primarily handling the sales

of one or more manufacturers, either on a cost basis

or on the usual wholesale commission basis.

Q. Does your corporation, American Box Shook

Export Association, do any business with any lum-

ber manufacturing or lumber sales organization or

corporation in the United States, except its own

members ? A. No.

Q. Has it done any business except with its own
members ? A. No.

Q. Did it do any business except with its ow^n

members in the fical year in question?

A. No, it did not.

Q. Will you explain to us the manner in which

you do business for your members in foreign trade ?

A. We first develop an inquiry from a foreign

export customer, secure the necessary information

as to specifications and shipping schedule, quantity,

and then we contact our members to see whether

they might be interested. We find out what price

might be the minimum at which they would be will-

ing to handle this business, to determine what ship-

ping schedules might be maintained, and after

securing from our members a fairly firm commit-
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mont as to performance and as to the minimum

l)rice at which they would be willing to handle this

business, we then make an offer to the customer,

and by negotiation work out then a definite sale to

the customer, based upon commitments made with

our own members.

The Court: We will take a brief recess at this

moment.

(Short recess.)

Tlie Court: You may proceed.

Mr. Wallace: Will you read the h\st question

and answer, please?

(Record read by Reporter.)

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, in your answer to the last ques-

tion, you said, ''We do this and we do that.'' AVhom

did you refer to as 'Sve''?

A. Well, I referred to myself, and, of course,

the staff such as we have had at times. At the be-

ginning, all [41] activities were handled almost ex-

clusively by myself; in fact, all transactions and all

commitments. As the organization has grown, it

has been necessary to have an assistant sometimes

here in San Francisco, and then again in AVashing-

ton, as we now have. But I have ])ersonally handled

and have supervised practically all of the sales and

all of tlic coinmitmciits with members.

Q. \y\\\ you tell us what yoiii' duties as geuci'al

manager oi' this Association are?

A. From the beu-iiniinji; thev have been to make
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the sales and the foreign contacts, to arrange for

production with our members, to arrange for finan-

cing, supervise the actual shipment, the loading,

take care of the collection and pay the accounts;

naturally supervise the keeping of the record and

the other details.

Q. This Association has other officers, that is, a

president and vice-president, and a secretary and

treasurer ? A. Yes.

Q. What are their duties?

A. Well, they are chosen from among the direc-

tors. Their duties might include countersigning of

checks. They might on call, and when it may be

necessary to lay down policies and to review ac-

tivities, to check on the status of the foreign mar-

ket, and to take care of other subjects which would

be related to policy and the general conduct of the

[42] organization.

Q. Well, the directors, I take it, each represent

a member, each of the directors represents a mem-
ber'? A. That is right.

Q. There are no directors except as representa-

tives of members? A. That's right.

Q. Who calls them together? Do you?

A. The president calls them. Usually I suggest

to the president that it might be pro])er that there

be a meeting of directors and possibly it may coin-

cide with the trip I am making to the West Coast

here, and then I issue the call in his name, and of

course the amiual meeting is detennined by the by-
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laws. We attempt to conform to that as nearly as

convenient.

Q. hi your answer to a ])rior question, you re-

ferred to a minimum price. Will you ex})lain a

little what you intended to convey by that? You

said you got a minimum ])rice from your members.

A. Well, in presenting an inquiry to our mem-

bers, we must necessarily include some items or

some factors there tliat are not definitely fixed at

the time, such as i)i*obably delivery requirements,

approximate maximum requirements of the cus-

tonK^', and sometimes there is a little doubt about

specifications. We talk those things over, and na-

turally we find [43] that our members are of dif-

ferent opinions. We then work out what would be

known as a ''minimum satisfactory price'' to the

majority of the members, generally to all who are

engaged in that type of ])roduction. It is under-

stood, however, that if we are able to secure a

higher realization than that, we will do so. We
will not commit any member to ])i'oduce at less than

that i)rice. The hazards of export trade are mnn-

ei'ous, and we cannot always aiiti('i])ate what tlu»

expense^ will be of handliiiu' an order. We hav(^ to

protect ourselves against unknown factors, such as

th(* loss of ship])ing s])ace, or increased insurance

rates, or increased rail rates, sometimes. We must

])rotect ourselves against claims which we iihiy feel

a]'(' Just or iiiijiist, wliicli always involve not only

the f.o.b. mill eost, but j)Ossil)ly the (Iclivci'ed cost,

Avhich i'l'eciucntly is twice as much as the f.o.b. mill.
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Under that arrangement then we have this mill

price at which the mill will produce, and then it is

our obligation to do our best to secure more than

that.

Q. Then do you add something to that price to

establish the price to the consumer in South Africa,

we will say?

A. Yes, we add the usual margin, which is basic-

ally around 8 per cent. It might vary from 8 to 10

per cent, and if there are unknown factors of ex-

pense, we sometimes take those into account. Then

in actually making the shipment, completing the

sale, collecting the money, none of these contin-

gencies may have developed. Some items of expense

may have been [44] saved, and so our realization

is a little more—our net realization is a little more,

or the expense of doing business is a little less,

which leaves a residue, and under our form of op-

eration this residue must be considered as addi-

tional realizations. We attempt to set up a neces-

sary reserve for such contingencies as may further

develop, but anything above that necessary and

justifiable reserve is looked upon purely as addi-

tional realization over and above the minimum
price at which the member was willing to produce,

which we might call a preliminary billing price.

To explain further, we settle with the member
on the basis of that minimum price. We discount

our bills. We must take advantage of every pos-

sible saving. We discount our bills; we pay our

members within the discount period, and therefore
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it is necessary to have some fixed j)riee which we

may make a settlement. Frequently it is not known

before months later, whether a given sale or a

transaction has been more or less favorable than

anticii)ated ; therefore the final adjustment must

come months and a considerable time after the

})reliminary or the billing price has been ])aid and

the transaction more or less closed up to that point.

Q. You say that it is frequently months later.

Where did you sell most of your shook ?

A. The great bulk has gone to South Africa. Of

course, we have sold—I believe during the same

period we shipped to [45] the Persian Gulf; we

shi])ped down into the Indian Ocean; we have

shipped quite a volume to the United Kingdom.

W(^ liave shipped some to Ireland; one or two ship-

ments to vSouth America.

Q. Then you cannot finally close your books and

determine how much money you have made, what

the final I'ealization is on a ])articular shipment

until the shipment has got there, you know whether

there are any claims, and if so, whether the claims

are sound, know what youi- insurance rates actually

have been, your ocean ti'anspoi'tation, all those

items.

Mr. Murray: If Your Honoi* ])lease, T will have

to ask that counsc^l does not lead this witness quite

that much, it amounts almost to testimony by him.

The Court: I think counsel will agree ho is l(\-ul-

ing the witness.

Mr. AVallace: Yes, I w^ould.
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By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Will you state to us, Mr. Hudson, please,

why there is a period of several months between

the establishment of your preliminary, or prelim-

inary price and the final determination of the final

ultimate return from a particular shipment?

A. Yes. We enter into a contract with our cus-

tomer, covering possibly a total given number of

box shook to be delivered over a period which may
vaiy from three months up to nine months. The

variable factors there may be rail freight to port,

port charges, handling charges. And sometimes, in

certain items of insurance, ocean freight, and of

course [46] claims.

Under wartime conditions we attempt to freeze

as many of these factors as possible. Some of them

are fixed subject to variations which will be to the

customer's account, but there is no way at all—we

have never found any way to freeze all the hazards

and factors of expense.

As an illustration, under present conditions we
ship entirely from New York. We start the ship-

ments east, thinking that we have ocean space ar-

ranged, and when the shiimients are half way
there, the government takes the space aw^ay from

us. We must have at all times warehouse sj)ace

available at some point in the east. Therefore we
must start this shipment out on a warehousing and

transit basis.

We have even had the government take ware-

houses away from us while shijmients were in tran-
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sit. AVe have had warehouse s])aee at Newark, at

Trenton, Jersey City, I believe sometimes at J^alti-

niore. The hope is that we will be able to unload

cars directly into the vessel, but very often we will

have to unload them into a warehouse. Then we

have even had cars and shipments made on barges,

taken out into the New York harbor, pulled along-

side vessels, and in the process, or before a bundle

of box shook has been moved, the ship has been

taken away from us. We have had to move those

shi])ments back into a warehouse. Every handling

involves breaking of bundles and additional ex-

pense, and those items as they ])ile u]) of course

[47] must be taken care of somewhere with oui'

customers, eight, ten thousand miles away. We
must assume full responsibility to get the load on

and to sui'mount all of those difficulties and ob-

stacles.

Now, conditions at the beginning of a deal may
be greatly different from those at the end. 1 refer

as an example—1 would say that if we are handling

a million box shook in June, the conditions might

be ({uitc favorable to pi'oduction. Dry niaterial is

available. It may be June oi* July, and we liav(^

ideal conditions.

When we get into the latter part of the year,

November, December, wc^ may havc^ difficulties that

we never anticipated dui'ing the summer months, so

we don't know until the whole shi]mient is com-

pleted just what oui- cxjx'iises will he. TIkmi, two

montlis later we may iJ!;vt a cable i'l'om South Africa
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indicating that at some interior point they are find-

ing that mold has developed, certain shipments

were apparently too damp. These shipments crossed

the Equator. We sometimes find that the holds of

vessels are in condition where considerable con-

densation occurs, seepage or dripping of water on

this shipment. Perhaps the moisture content has

been no higher than 18 per cent, what we attempt

to achieve at time of shipment, but en route there

is a considerable condensation in the hold. That is

a very familiar complaint, and so, at destination,

we don't know whether it has been our fault or

[48] the fault of conditions beyond our control.

At any rate, claims develop, cables come in,

merely warning us that a claim is developing. Three

months later we may know what that claim is. Six

months later we may get word that the claim never

amounted to anything, as has happened, and then

again six months later we have had bad news.

Q. You referred in your answer to a minimum
understanding with your members on the prelimin-

ary sale price. Does that understanding with your

members with respect to each sales contract api)ly

to all the sales contracts'? A. Yes.

Q. Was that understanding reduced to simple

w^ritten form?

A. No, not necessarily. I think that our minutes

wall show—carry some statements of policy, but in

the main this relationship between myself and the

mills has been a personal one, handled by personal

calls. I have, since 1935, made usually three to
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eiglit trij)s to the West Coast annually. I have tried

to keej) rather ch)sely in touch with these mills.

Frequently the principals of these concerns are in

the East, and they usually call on me there in

Washington when they are in that vicinity. Then

we use long' distance tele])hone quite often. This

is an understanding that has grown up from the

inception of the organization. [49]

My ])ro])osal to members of this industry when

we set up the organization in 1935 was that this

would be a service organization, actually just an

export department of their own firms. There would

be no profits accrue, li would be operated merely

on tlie basis of meeting its own expenses so far as

])ossible during the first thirty months of the oi-

ganization.

Mr. Murray: May I interru])t?

If Your Honor please, 1 will ask that this go

in by questicm and answer now, instead of narra-

tive, because it is getting to the point where 1 want

to object, and I have difficulty doing so in a narra-

tion. 1 ask that this be done, j)lease, so I can pro-

tect myself on i\w jvrovd.

T\w Court: \i' you will conform to that practice.

Mr. Wallace: Yes, Your Honor.

V>y Mr. Wallace:

Q. Ml'. Hudson, who ])]'e])nres the mi!nit(\s of

the Amci-ican l>ox Shook Kxport Association !

A. 1 have done so in all cases where 1 have been

present at the meetings, and that covers ])ossibly 90

per cent.
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Q. And you then have them mimeographed?

A. That's right.

Q. What is the purpose of the mimeographing?

A. We send a copy of the minutes to all mem-

bers.

Q. I hand you a book here and ask you if you

will look [50] at it and tell us what it is?

(Handing.)

A. Well, this is a file of the minutes of the

American Box Shook Export Association, includ-

ing, I believe, notices of meetings and possibly some

other similar material.

Q. Is that a book that you keep?

A. This comes from our files in Washington.

Q. It is kept under your direction?

A. Yes.

Q. I call your attention to the minutes of

the meeting held on May 6, 1940, and ask you if

those minutes were prepared by you?

A. Yes, they were.

Q. Were they sent around to all the members?

A. Yes.

Q. I call your attention to one item appearing

on the second page of the minutes of the meeting

of May 6, 1940, and ask if you will read the last

paragraph ?

Mr. Murray: May I see that?

Mr. Wallace: Surely. (Handing).

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Will you read it for the record?



50 American Box Shook Export Assn. vs.

(Testimony of C. D. Hudson.)

A. '^Mr. Gordon moved that the by-laws be

amended to effect distribution of excess revenue

among members on a basis of f.o.b. dollar mill value

participation in shipments, rather than as a divi-

dend on stock, such distribution to be [51] made

annually as of December 31. Mr. McCulloch sec-

onded the motion, and it was duly enacted.''

Q. Were Mr. Gordon and Mr. McCulloch both

directors and members at that time, or re})resenta-

tives and members f A. Thcv wei'c.

Q. Mr. Hudson, I hand you another book and

ask you if the first pages of this book contain the

by-laws and the articles of incorporation of the

American Box Shook Association*?

A. They do.

Q. On Page 10 of the volume 1 call your atten-

tion to article 18 of the by-laws and ask if you will

])lease read that into the record?

A. ^^The board of directors of this cor})oration

may adoi)t, repeal and/or amend the by-laws of this

corporation, subject to the powTr of the sharehold-

ers to adoi)t, amend or rcjx'al sudi by-laws, or to

revoke and/or reinstate such authority by the vote

of the sharelioldci's or by the wi'itten assent of

shareholders, pi-ovidcd, however, that the board of

directors of this cor])oration shall have no authority

to change the number of directors or the ])rovisions

wnth reference to the filling of vacanci(\s in the

board of dirtu-tors, as pi-ovided in Ai'ticle 6 hereof.''

Q. 1 hand you the volume you have described as

the record of the minutes of meetings of the Peti-
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tioner Association [52] and ask you to turn to the

minutes of July 29th, and ask you if those minutes

were prepared by you? A. Yes, they were.

Q. Mr. Hudson, have you an extra copy of the

minutes of the meeting of July 29, 1940 *?

A. I believe in our files here we would have, but

I don't know as we have them here.

Mr. Wallace: Do you know, Mr. Muncy? Have

w^e an extra copy'?

Mr. Muncy: I will check; I believe so.

Mr. Wallace: Well, if you will just identify

that, then instead of having the witness read the

portion I had in mind, counsel, I will follow your

suggestion and just put in a copy, if I may. Your
Honor.

The Witness : Yes, the meetings—the minutes of

the meeting of July 29, 1940, were prepared by

myself.

Mr. Wallace: I will put in the whole minutes,

counsel. I will ask the witness to read the para-

graph at the bottom of the first page.

The Witness: ''Attention was further called to

the fact that the Associaion had been set up as a

non-profit organization, with the understanding

that any excess receivc^d from the sale of shook

over expenses would, ui)on action of the organiza-

tion, be subject to distribution as additional realiza-

tion on shipments made during the period when
such [5:]] surplus was accunmlated.''

Mr. Wallace: Mr. Murray, I think these are

duplicate mimeographs, but you might clux'k, and
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if they seem to be correct, we will put tliciii in

evidence.

Mr. Hudson, 1 call youi* attcntiou to the fact,

which counsel has called my attciilion to, that the

heading of this document or mimeographed docu-

ment says, ^'Minutes of the meeting of American

lk)x Shook Export Association, riiiiicoi'poi'ated,

held at the offices of the Western l>ox ])istributors,

San Francisco, California, Monday, July 29, 1940."

I will offer that in evidence as the Petitioiun'^s

Exhibit No. 1.

Mr. Murray: 1 object to that, if Your Honor

please, on the basis that it is incom])etent, iri'ele-

vant and inmiaterial, being the mimite of the uniu-

c()rj)orated Association which existed i)rior to the

existence of this incorporation, and it has no beai*-

ing on this case.

Mr. Wallace: It is not offered, if Your Honor

please, for the pui*])ose eitluu* of ])roving it as a

minute, or for the i)ur])ose of ])roving the mimites.

The witness has testified i)]'eviously to an undcu'-

standing between himself, oi* the Association and

its members with respect of contracts foi- the sale

of lumber. I had asked the witness if those con-

tracts oi* that undei'standing had anywhere been re-

duced to wi-iting. llavinu' idenlilicd the documents,

I was then going to ask the [')4] witness as to

whether those statements which he has read were

a writing evidencing this undeistandinu.

T\w Convt: It will be admitted. Kxhibit 1.

(The document referred to was marked and
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received in evidence as Petitioner's Exhibit

No. 1.)

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT No. 1

National Wooden Box Association

308 Barr Building, Washington, D. C.

MINUTES OF MEETING

of

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION (Unincorporated)

Held at Offices of Western Box Distributors, San

Francisco, Calif. Monday, July 29th, 1940

Present

:

Albert Pearlman, American Box Corporation.

J. F. O'Brien, California Pine Box Distributors.

A. W. Pinger, California Pine Box Distributors.

A. H. Gordon, Clover Valley Lumber Company.

J. Walter Rodgers, Western Box Distributors.

Walter Slack, Counsel.

Rollin Rodolph, Accountant.

W. A. Clayton, American Box Shook Export As-

sociation.

C. D. Hudson, American Box Shook Export As-

sociation.

Mr. Rodders, president of the Association, called

the meeting to order. An announcement was made

that Mr. Rodgers and Mr. 0'J]rien, secretary, had

received })roxies from the following members:

E. H. Barnes Company.

New England Box Company.
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Kesterson Lumber Corporation.

Western Pine Mfg. Co., Ltd.

Weyerhaeuser Sales Company.

White Pine Sash Company.

Brewer Pine Box Company.

It was stated the proxies carried instructions that

the Association's surphis be made availai)h' for use

of the incorporated association.

The manager of the Association called attention

to the audit as of May 31, 1940, which showed a

surplus in the amount of $8,942.91. Tlie manager

stated a letter had been addressed to the Connnis-

sioner of Internal Revemie asking whether any

surplus held by the Association uj^on dissolution

was subject to tax.

Attention was further called to the fact that the

Association had been set uj) as a non-profit or-

ganization with the understanding that any excess

received from the sale of shook over exi)enses

would, upon action of the organization, be subject

to distribution as additional realization on shi])-

ments made during the j)eriod when such surplus

was accunuilated.

It was stated the surplus as of May 31 had been

accumulated (lui'iiig tlic |)('ri()(l from March 1st to

May 31st, during wliicli time the Association

shipped a total of cS,204,9b:> ft., pui'chased from

seven membcM's in tlu^ followiiiu amounts and ])er-

centages

:
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March-April May Total Percent.

American Box Corporation 987,631 1,342,304 2,329,935 28.40

Brewer Pine Box Company 317,808 206,800 524,608 6.39

California Pine Box Dist. 554,400 1,123,800 1,678,200 20.45

Dwij^ht Lumber & Box Co. 99,000 802,500 901,500 10.99

Western Box Distributors 682,920 1,143,600 1,826,520 22.26

Western Pine Mfg. Co., Ltd. 277,200 169,000 446,200 5.44

Weyerhaeuser Sales Company 297,000 201,000 498,000 6.07

3,215,959 4,989,004 8,204,963 100.00

The following resolution was then submitted:

Whereas, the American Box Shook Export Asso-

ciation was organized as a non-profit association for

the i)urpose of conducting export trade at cost in be-

half of its members, and

Whereas, the financial report of the Association

as of May 31, 1940, shows a surplus in the amomit

of $8,942.91, therefore, be it

Resolved: That the invoiced mill value of

shipments made from March 1st to May 31,

1940, be increased to the extent of $1.00 per M,

said increase to be evidenced by invoices sub-

mitted by respective members covering all ship-

ments during the period named, and

Whereas, the American Box Shook Export As-

sociation has voted to change its status as of June

1, 1940 to tliat of a corporation, and

Whereas, the incorporated association may re-

quire temporarily the use of cash funds in excess

of its fixed ('a])ital, be it further

Resolved: That the respective amounts due

members for additional invoice value applic-
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able to sliij)nients from Marcli 1st to May 31st

be placed in the hands of C. D. Hudson as

trustee, and that said C. J). Hudson be au-

thorized to allow the American Box Shook Ex-

port Association (inc()i])()rated) to use such

funds at no interest cliai'ji;!' until the said in-

corporated Association lias accuninlated a sui*-

plus above expenses in an amount (Hjual or a]v

proximately equal to such funds.

Affirmative votes for the foregoing resolutions

were cast in behalf of the following members:

American J3ox Corporation

California Pine Box Distributors

Kesterson Lumber Cori)oration

Clover Valley Lumber Coni])any

Holders of j)roxies felt they could not cast votes

in favor of the resolution without violation of in-

structions. The following motion was then duly

presented and enacted:

Moved, that the above r(\solution be placed

before the membership of the American Mox

Shook Export Association ( unincorporatcHl) by

mail ballot.

c. 1). iirnso^

Mr. Murray: May I ])lace another excej)tion on

the recoi'd, if Your Honor ])]ease ? 1 also o!)ject

to this on the basis tiuit this tax|)ayei' eorpoi'at ion

could in no way be bound by an agreement between
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someone who was handling their business for them

and some of their members, and for that reason this

document is incompetent. I don't know the reason

that counsel had in mind, but he just stated that he

is trying to prove by some agreement that this wit-

ness had with a prior organization, they are going

to try to prove something that he feels might bind

this corporation, which I submit is incompetent

evidence.

The Court: Proceed.

Mr. Murray: May I have an exception, please?

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, do either of the statements you

have read reflect the understanding you have just

testified to?

Mr. Murray: I object on the basis that is in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial to this case.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Murray: Exception, please. [55]

A. The second statement reflects the imder-

standing we have had and do have at the present

time with our members.

Q. Under the date of July 29, 1940, or previ-

ous thereto, or when?

Mr. Murray: Same objection, if Your Honor
please.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Murray: Excej)ti()n, please.

A. It accurately reflects the understanding I

have had from the very begiiniing of this project,

whether unincorporated or incori)orated.
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Q. I call your attention, Mi*. Hudson, to tlie fact

that in tlie reference made in the mimites of May
6, 1940, a reference is made to an f.o.b. dollar mill

valuation, and in the later reference made in the

minutes of July 29th, a reference is made to an ad-

ditional realization on shi])nients made. Is there

a difference between those two?

A. There is, yes.

Q. Will you explain what the difference is?

A. Well, one was to ])r()vide for the final pay-

ment based upon dollar of shipments of resi)ective

members, and the other based upon footage shi])ped.

The motion to amend the by-laws, as present(»d by

Mr. Gordon, represented an effort to formally put

into our by-laws a procedure or a method of iiiial

settlement, and at [56] that time a})])arently it was

thought that dollar value of shipment would be the

right basis of computing the additional I'ealization.

It was not, however, very well conceived at the

moment, we found, because that was not the method

we had used ])reviously, and it was not entirely a

fail' method. We sold (^verythitig im tin* pel* thou.s-

aud foot basis, that is, we com])ute(l eveiythiug. We
actually s(»ll the customer on a unit basis pei* box,

but in dealing with our own meiMbcrs all of our

conversatioiis wei*e based nioic oi* h'ss upiui ]-<';diza-

tion pel- thousand boai'd feet, and we made all coni-

])Utations oF costs on that basis, and so, when il

canu* to th(^ mattei* of actually (listi-ibutiuL:- the

residue from a certain transaction ovei* a given

])eriod, it was quite apparently the only fair metliod
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of distribution, was to put it on a per-thousand-

foot basis.

Q. Per thousand feet of whaf?

A. Box shook, computed according to our stand-

ard method of figuring the footage in box shook.

Q. What was the relationshii) between a mill,

or a member, and the per thousand feet?

A. AVell, if one member shipped a half a million

feet during q, given period, and we found that our

realization was approximately $2 a thousand more

than the minimum price, then that member would

be entitled to $1 per thousand on 500,000 feet.

Q. Per thousand feet of lumber shipped? [57]

A. Of box shook, yes. Another member, ship-

ping only 100,000 feet would be entitled to $1 per

thousand on 100,000 feet.

Q. Mr. Hudson, did you or the American Box

Shook Export Association make a distribution of

the additional funds realized from shijmients on or

about May 28, 1941? A. Yes, we did.

Mr. Wallace: I have handed counsel the checks,

Your Honor, that were used to distribute.

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, I hand you a list of cancelled

checks, together

The Court (Interposing): A list or a group?

Q. (Contiiuiing) : a group of cancelled

checks, all made out on the check form of the

American Box Shook Export Association.

Will you look through those checks and tell me
if those are the cluH-ks that were sent out ])\' your
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Association to certain of its nieni])ci"s on or a])()Ut

May 28, 1941 ? A. Thvy are.

Q. And to whom weie those cheeks sent?

You want them listed for the record, 1 take it.

A. And the amounts?

Q. Will you ,i;ive us tlie list and tlie amounts?

A. Western Pine Manufactuiinjj,' Com])any,

$989.68. [58]

Ewauna l>ox Company, $214.68.

White Lumber & Box Comi)any, $285.30.

Western Box Distributors, $1,077.17.

Kesterson Lumber Cori)oration, |120.03.

CaliCoinia Pine Box Distributors, $704.11.

American Box Corporation, $1,804.27.

New England Box Company, $800.87.

E. H. Barnes Company, $498.34.

White Pine Sash Company, $572.49.

Brewer Pine Box Com})any, $492.17.

Q. You have read them all ! A. 1 have.

Q. Attached to tlie group of checks tliere is a

letter addressed by ihv American l^ox Shook Ex-

j)ort Association to one of its members. Will you

read that letter*, please?

A. ^'May 28, 1941.

''Western Box Distributors,

''403 Monadnock Building,

"San Francisco.

"(Jenth'UKMi:

"We are attaching our check foi* $1,077.17, cov-

ering additional realization on shipments made by
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your mills between June 1, 1940, and June 1, 1941.

^'Our records indicate that during this [59]

l^eriod your mills shipped 2,154,334 board feet of

box shook, against which shipments the manage-

ment authorized additional realization to you of

$.50 per thousand board feet.

^^ Signed: AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EX-
PORT ASSOCIATION,

By W. A. CLAYTON."

Q. Did a letter similar to the letter you have in

your hand, and which you have just read for the

record, go to each of the other members of your

Association who received checks? A. Yes.

Q. I noticed that in your list of members given

in your testimony a little time ago, you referred

also to the Weyerhaeuser Sales Com])any, and I

noticed that none of those checks is made to the

Weyerhaeuser Sales Company.

Was a check sent to the Weyerhaeuser Sales

Company ? A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. They made no shipments during this period.

Q. Did each of the persons or the corporations to

whom you sent those checks, have they made agree-

ments wdth you on the minimum or preliminary

basis you have referred to, and made sales to your

corporation on that basis prior to tin* [60] issuance

of those checks? A. Yes.

Mr. Murray: Object, if Your Honor please, on
the basis that is incompetent, irrelevant and im-

material.
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The Court: Objection overruled.

Mr. Murray: Kxf'e])tioii.

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Did the letters which went out to the other

members all have the same form of calculation?

A. Yes, yes, 50 cents per thousand board feet.

Q. How did you arrive at that sum of 50 cents

per thousand board feet?

A. We found we had received additional re-

alization, a total of which represented—rather, the

total of which that we felt might be distributed

safely without hazard—or without depleting our

reserve for additional cost would represent 50 cents

a tliousand board feet.

Q. Therefore you sent the checks to each of the

])ersons who had made sales during that period?

A. Made shijmients during that period.

Mr. Wallace: I should like to introduce the

group of checks, Your Honor, and the letter ac-

com})anying them.

The Court: As one exhibit?

Mr. Wallace: As one exhibit.

Mr. Muiray: No objection. [(>!]

The Court : Exhibit 2.

(The documents i-cferred to were marked

and I'cccivcd in evidence as Petitioner's Ex-

hibit No. 2.)

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Now, Ml'. Hudson, was the same plan (»i"

operation to which you have testified, the same iw-
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rano-ement with your members carried on througli-

out the fiscal year June 1, 1940 to May 31, 1941?

A. Yes.

Q. And have you continued to operate under

that plan since? A. We have.

Mr. Wallace: That is all.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Murray:

Q. Mr. Hudson, are you a stockholder of this

American Box Shook Association?

A. No, I am not.

Q. Are you a director? A. No, I am not.

Q. Are you an officer? A. Manager only.

Q. Manager only? A. Yes.

Q. How did it come you were making minutes

for the [62] corporation?

A. I think, Mr. Murray, that may have been

somewiiat irregular. Those minutes should later be

approved by the officially elected secretary and

l)resident. I think maybe the reason I made out

the minutes was that it had been a one-man or-

ganization largely from the first, and I have ahvays

taken care of such details as that.

Q. Well, the minute dated May 6, 1940, from

which you read a paragra])li into the record is

signed by yourself, but there is no evidence in the

miiuites that it was api)roved by anybody. What
do you say about that?

A. Well, I would say that we generally have

o])erated ])erhaps with a mininnmi of formality and

office staff, and since I sent copies of the minutes
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to everybody concerned and always liave sent

copies, there a))})arently has been no objection to

that informal method of liandling it. I ])resume,

to bring the matter into strictly legal status, we

should have those minutes reviewed by whoever was

actually the secretary at the time, and have him

sign the minutes.

I noticed one set of minutes carries my name as

acting secretary. Usually I see my name in there

without any title.

Q. Well, then, you felt that you had the author-

ity to draw a minute any time you wanted to, and

just send a copy out to the directors? [63]

A. Only based upon actions taken at a regularly

called meeting.

Q. Isn'it it ti'n(^ that you wrote up some min-

utes in Washington and sent them out to them at

times?

A. Only based upon nuH^tinus held.

Q. Held where?

A. Held here, or wliei'(»ver tJie minuter state. 80

far as I know, we have never held a meetins: any

other place than in San Fi'ancisco, as far as I can

recall. Frequently I have taken a plane within an

honi* after a nieetinu' was held, and would he in

Washington the next day oi* two, and we would

Avrite the minutes in Washington, ])ased entii'ely

u])()n a meeting held ]iei"(\

Mr. iNlurray: 1 would like to offei' as l\esj)()n(l-

ent's first exhibit the coi|)oiatio!i inccmie declared

value excess })rofits and defense tax i*eturn, and
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the corporation excess profits tax return, to wbich

is attached a document, ''Treasury Form 1028,"

called, "Questionnaire with respect to claim for

exemption from tax,'' all of which are bound to-

gether here and refer to the fiscal year now before

the Court, the fiscal year of the corporation ended

May 31, 1941.

Mr. Wallace: May I see it, counsel, please?

The Court: Is there any objection?

Mr. Wallace: No objection, Your Honor.

The Court: Exhibit A. [64]

(The document referred to was marked and

received in evidence as Respondent's Exhibit

''A".)
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Respondent's Exhibit A— (Continued)

American Box Shook Export Association

Tax Return—Year Ended May 31, 1941

Gross Profit:

Commissions earned $40,214.78

Discounts earned 10,362.04

$50,576.82

Other Deductions:

Postage $ 361.61

Stationery and office supplies 450.90

Telegraph 4,606.20

Printing blocks 57.83

Telephone 1,836.95

Miscellaneous expenses 644.92

Travel expense 2,729.40

Legal and accounting 997.01

National Wooden Box Association

—

Services 3,100.00

$14,784.82

Ponn 1028. Treasury Department, Internal Rev-

enue Service. Rev. March, 1936.

QUESTIONNAIRE

For Farmers', Fruit Growers', or Like Association

Claiming Exemption Under Section 101 (12)

of the Revenue Act of 1936.
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Res])ondent's Exhibit A— (Continued)

State of California

County of San Francisco—ss.

William A. Clayton, deposes and says that he is

the Assistant Secretary of tlie American Box Shook

Export Association located at 407 Crocker Build-

ing, San Francisco, California, and that the follow-

ing answers and statements relative to the year

ended May 31, 1941, are true to the he^i of his

knowledged and belief:

1. Date association was oru'anized : March 26,

1940.

2. Pur])ose for which or^ianized: Ex])orting for

members under the Webb-Pomerene Act.

3. Is the association incorporated? Yes. If so,

state: (a) Date incorporated, March 26, 1940: (b)

imder the laws of what State? California.

4. State the amount of each class of ca])ital stock

outstanding and the value of the consideration for

which it was issued: Ca])ital stock authorized 50

shares par value $500 ])er share, none outstanding

until June 1, 1940. (a) State the rate of dividend

])ai(l on cacli class of such cai)ital stock; No
dividends.

*5. State the amount of each class of ca])ital stock

owned by: (a) Producei's: All. (b) Noiiproducers:

None, (c) Persons wlio weic non])i-oducers at tlie

time stock was acquired: None.

^(). State the cii'cunistances sui'i'ouiuling the ac-

(]uissitioii of youi- ('a|)ital stock by nonproducers: Not

appli('ai)le. (a) What provision is made for retirini::
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Respondent's Exhibit A— (Continued)

the capital stock held by nonproducers : Not ap-

plicable.

7. If the association issues any nonvoting pre-

ferred stock, explain whether the owners thereof

may participate in the profits of the association,

upon dissolution or otherwise, beyond the fixed divi-

dends: Not applicable.

8. What is the legal rate of interest in the State

in which the association is incorporated? Seven.

9. Does the State law require the maintenance of

a reserve? No. If so, state the amount of such

reserve $

10. Does the association maintain any reserve or

reserves other than required by the State law? No.

If so, state: (a) Amount of each reserve: None.

(b) Purpose for which each reserve is maintained:

None maintained.

11. What are the requirements for membership

in the association? By-laws Article I, Sec. 2: ^'New

shareholders shall become so only uj)on application

and approval by two thirds of the then shareholders

of the corporation and upon purchasing one share

of stock at the price fixed by two-thirds of the

shareholders at the time of such approval but at

not less than par.''

* The information called for in Questions 5 and 6

above need not be supy)]ied with resjxM't to nonvot-
ing ])referred stock, the owners of which are not
entitled or ])ermitted to participate, directly or in-

dii'ectly, in the ])r()fits of the association, npoii dis-

solution or otherwise, beyond the fixed dividends.
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12. ])()(»s tlie association deal with botli members

and non-members'? Not with non-members.

13. State the value of i)roducts marketed durin.i^

the year for: (a) Members. No operations until

June 1, 1940, $ None, (b) Nonmembers, $ None.

14. State the value of purchases made during

the year for: (a) Members, $ None, (b) Nonmem-
bers, $ None.

15. State the value of purchases made during the

year for persons who are neither members nor pro-

ducers. (Do not include this amount in Item 14(b))

:

$ None.

1(). State fully tlie manner in wliicli distribution

is made of tlie i)roceeds of products marketed for:

(a) Members: It is intended that a preliminary

billing price be settled monthly with the undei-

standinu' that any excess received from the sale of

shook ovi'v expenses would, u])on action of the or-

ganization, be subject to distribution as additional

realization on shi]mients made during the period

when such (wcess was accumulated, (b) Non-mem-

bers: No transactions.

17. Stale fully the* plan follo\v(Ml in charging for

supplies and ('(piipment ])U7'chased for: (a) Mem-
bers: None, (b) Nomnembers: None.

18. Does the association pay ])atronage divi-

dends? No. Jf so, ex])lai]i how such dividends ai'e

])artici])ated in by: (a) Members (b) Non-

members
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Respondent's Exliibit A— (Contiiuied)

19. Is the information contained herein repre-

sentative of the purposes and activities of the as-

sociation since January 1, 1925, or date of organiza-

tion, if organized subsequent to that date? Yes. If

not, state the changes that have occurred and dates

of such changes

20. Has the association filed income tax returns %

Ye^. If so, what year or years? Period from in-

corporation March 26, 1940, to May 31, 1940, date

of beginning business.

The attached financial statements showing the as-

sets and liabilities of the association as at the close

of the year covered by this questionnaire and a

classified list of the receipts and disbursements dur-

ing the same year are hereby specifically made a

part of this questionnaire.

W. A. CLAYTON
(Signature of a ])rincipal officer)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of August, 1934.

[Illigible]

Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

Attach

:

Financial statements.

Articles of incor])oration and by-laws.

[Stamp on face of Questiomiaire] : Prepared by

Rollin Rodolph & Co., CertiHcnl Public Accountants.
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Respondent's Exhibit A— (Continued)

Office of The Collector, First District of California.

In replying refer to Serial No. Aug. 400007-

F. Y. '41 (6-2-40 - 5-31-41)

Treasury Department, Internal Revenue Service,

Federal Office Building, San Francisco, Cali-

fornia. Aug. 26, 1941.

(Stamp] : Received Aug. 27, 1941. By
American Box Shook Export Association,

407 Crocker Bldg., San Francisco, Calif.

An examination of your income tax return for

the taxable fiscal year 1940 discloses that the affidavit

not properly executed.

You are requested to return this letter within

10 days from the date hereof with the affidavit

is not properly executed.

Resi)ectfully,

CLIFFORD C. ANGLIM,
Collector.

Title of second officer signing omitted. Signature

should be that of Treas. or Asst. Treas. or CAO.

AFFIDAVIT

We, the undersigned, president (or vice presi-

dent, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or

assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of

the corporation for which this return is made, being

severally duly sworn, each for himself deposes and

says that this return (including any accompanying

schedules and statements) has been examined by

him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief,

a true, correct and complete return, made in good



80 American Box Shook Export Assn. vs,

(Testimony of C. I). Hudson.)

Respondent's Exhibit A— (Continued)

faith, for the taxable year stated, pursuant to the

Internal Revenue Code and the regulations issued

thereimder.

(Corporate Seal)

J. WALTER ROUGERS,
President

J. F. 0'13RIT:X,

Treasurer

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day

of August, 1941.

(Notarial Seal)

MATILDA J. SCHIMPF,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My Connnission expires Dec. 23, 2944.

Audit Section, Room 250 '*Audit Form O"

By Mr. Murray:

Q. Mr. Hudson, did you have anything to do

with the making of the fed(^ral tax returns of the

American Dox Shook Export Association for the

fiscal year ended May 31, '41?

A. Well, may I sec that return, ju^t to refresh

my memory?

Q. Yes. (Handing).

A. Well, I think this nnirli connects with it. I

had gone over the annual statement with the ac-

countants, and T bolieve had been u'ivei] a pi'cliniin-
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ary copy of the return, and no doubt understood

exactly what the return would be before it was

submitted.

Q. And that, I take it, refers to the question-

naire attached to the return as well. I notice that

is signed by Mr. W. A. Clayton.

A. Yes. Mr. Clayton was the manager of the

San Francisco office, and I believe serving as as-

sistant secretary. I am not sure that I saw this

questionnaire before it was turned in, but I am
certain that I was in touch with Mr. Clayton, and

that if there was any question involving policy, or

involved in this, that perhai)s he discussed it with

me at the time. My name doesn't appear on this,

because this was handled here in San Francisco,

and I was doubtless in Washington at the time.

Q. Well, on Page 3 of the questionnaire, at-

tached to the returns, is the following statement,

in answer to a question numbered 16 on the ques-

tionnaire.

The quote is as follows:

*'It is intended that a preliminary price be set-

tled monthly w^ith the understanding that any ex-

cess received from the sale of shook over expenses

would, upon action of the organization, be subject

to distribution as additional realization on shi|)-

ments made during the ])ei*i()d when such (excess was

accumulated.''

I ask you, assuming you know, whether action

was taken by this taxpayer organization in connec-

tion with all distributions made by the corporation ?
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A. Yes. I would say that the word ^'action"

may or may not be as definite as you have in mind.

The directors discussed the realization over a

given period. Naturally there was a feeling there

should be held back a cushion, or you might say a

small revolving fund to take care of contingencies,

and so it was just a matter of judgment a^ to

whether we could safely distribute 50 cents or 75

cents or $1 a thousand additional in view of the

returns to date, and that phrase there, '*upon ac-

tion of the organization,'' referred to that policy,

that it would be a matter of judgment to be de-

termined by the directors as to how much of the

additional realization might safely at that [^^61

moment be paid against shipments.

Q. Well, then, it was necessary, and that neces-

sity was recognized in connection with every dis-

tribution, that the directors act in accordance with

it, is that right?

A. That the directors more or less a])prov(^ the

distribution.

Q. Well, they had to a})prove it before it was

made, of course? A. That's right.

Q. And that was necessary to their |)lan?

A. Well, the phrase occurs in there, ''upon ac-

tion of the organization." It occurs in the minutes,

I believe, of July, that we read, and in that state-

ment carried on the questionnaire, that ])lirase oc-

curs, and I am sure that was understood to mean

that the directors should a])prove of any additional

realization, merely because it was a matter of judg-



Comimssioner of Internal Revenue 83

(Testimony of C. D. Hudson.)

ment as to whether there were still some delayed

liabilities w^iicli might dissipate some of that ad-

ditional realization later.

Q. The taxpayer corporation here, I believe you

stated, existed for several years as an unincorpor-

ated organization? A. That's right.

Q. Was it exactly the same name?

A. The same name exactly.

Q. I would like to ask you if you know whether

this [67] minute of May 6, 1940, a part of which

you read into the record a while ago, referred to

the unincorporated or the incorporated Associa-

tion?

A. That motion that I read very definitely re-

ferred to the by-laws of the corporation that was

then being formed and set up.

Q. But then you hadn't had any meetings

—

there wasn't any board of directors, or anything, of

the corporation at that time, apparently, is that

right ?

A. Yes, the corporation was in process. We had

secured a California license, I believe in March of

that year, and the directors were meeting as direc-

tors of the corporation. Our fiscal year did not

start until June of that year, but necessarily there

were meetings prior to that, and we were transact-

ing business as directors—they were, ratlier.

Q. Are you ])resently familiar with the ap})lica-

tion for the permit to issue shares of caj)ital stock,

and the articles of incorporation and the by-laws

of this taxpayer Association?
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A. Well, I have read them all tlir()n<j:li. I

haven't refreshed my memoiy on tlicni in recent

months.

Mr. Murray: 1 understand, if Your Honor

])lease, that counsel for the Petitioner will stipu-

late that the articles of incorporation and the by-

laws say nothing about distributions of any kind to

tlie members. They are silent on it. It is by hiis

wishes that they are not being placed in. [()8]

Mr. AYallace: Well, counsel, if you want the

articles and the by-laws, I don't want to raise any

objection. I suggest that they are quite long, and

it will create an extensive record, but 1 have no ol)-

jection if you want them in.

Mr. Murray: I have no objection to not having

them in, if you admit those facts.

Mr. Wallace: Except as the by-laws may have

been amended. There certaiidy is nothing in the

origiiuil by-laws with respect of distribution.

Mr. Murray: Are there any amendmeiits?

Mr. Wallace: You have just heard the witness

read one.

Mr. Murray: He speaks of an amendment to the

by-laws, not to the article.

Mr. Wallace: There are no amendments so far

as I know, to the articlcvS of incorjxji'ation.

Mr. Murray: Well, then, I will ask the witness:

By Mr. Murray:

Q. Do you know of any amendments that were

actually made to the i)y-laws of this ineoi-poi-atiiui .^
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A. No, I don't know of any. The motion so rec-

orded there, amending the by-laws to provide for

payment of this additional realization on dollar

value, that amendment was never actually put into

the by-laws. [69]

Q. Mr. Hudson, do I understand correctly that

the basis for distribution is the number of board

feet that each stockholder furnished to these ship-

ments during the year, irrespective of what ship-

ments his particular merchandise went into?

Mr. Wallace: May I have the question, please?

(Question read by Reporter.)

Mr. Murray: I would like to correct that. Irre-

spective of which particular shipment his particular

board feet went into.

Mr. Wallace: That is not quite clear to me. It

may be to the witness.

The Witness: I will answer, yes, with the un-

derstanding that you are asking me whether the

distribution was against total footage ship])ed, rather

than by some segregation of shipments, or may
I illustrate that, over a given period—included in

the year in question, we made shipments possibly to

United Kingdom, to Ireland, to South Africa, and

perhaps to the Persian Gulf. Those shipments were

all totalled, and the distribution was against the

total shipments ]n*orated according to that part

shipped by each member, so there was no classifica-

tion of, say, butter boxes versus orange boxes. The

distribution was on a prorata basis against all of

them.
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Q. It is not true that also there was no attempt

made [70] to identify the shook furnished by one

stockholder with the particular shi])ment which that

shook went out of the country in? I mean, did you

attempt to identify anybody's products, following

it through from the time you took it until the time

you sold it, and then reimburse him on that basis?

Did you do that?

A. We have always asked the mills to identify

their shook by route, putting a mark as the shook

goes through a re-saw. It isn't always ])ractical,

however, and w^hile theoretically we hoped we could

always identify, actually it was not always possible.

Q. Were you generally familiar with the aj)-

I)lication foi* the permit to issue shares of cai)ital

stock which was made ot the Division of Coi-pora-

tions. Department of Investment of the State of

California, just prior to the issuance of the stock

of this com})any here in question?

A. Those matters were handled by Mr. ^Slack,

our counsel here in San Francisco, and I was prob-

ably as familiar with the matter as any client would

be with his counsel.

(}. I show you what purports to be a copy of

that application, and ask you to look at sub-para-

gra])h (d), and see if you are familial' with that,

if you know about that. (Handing).

A. i am familiar with that, yei^, sir.

Q. And the sub-division that you ai'c looking at

is the way you understand it, is that right ? [71]

A. That's right.
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Mr. Wallace: I will stipulate, counsel, that that

is an accurate copy, and you may read any part of

it that you desire into the record.

Mr. Murray: The witness has said that is the

way he understands it, though.

The Witness: Yes.

Mr. Murray : And I would like to read this sub-

paragraph from the application just mentioned,

which reads as follows:

*' Applicant ])roposes to transact business by pur-

chasing box shook exclusive for export, and will not

engage in the manufacture or sale of any conmiod-

ity in domestic commerce.''

By Mr. Murray:

Q. Mr. Hudson, I understand that you were

manager and had a lot to do with the unincor-

porated Association, and then afterwards the in-

corporated Association? A. That's right.

Q. Could you tell why the Association was in-

corporated?

A. We started out originally as a fact-finding

organization in 1935. We charged dues. Each mem-
ber paid $15 a month. Under that arrangement we

were to return to members information as to ex-

l)ort markets. We made surveys of markets in 25

or 30 countries. We thought at that tinu* oui* only

activity would be to place information which would

lead to export sales [72] by the individual manu-

facturers. It developed, however, that ])laii was

not entirely j)ractical or woi'thwhile, and we would
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of necessity have to go into business as a trading

organization. The member mills didn't want to set

up within each organization an exj)ort dei)artment,

and it was apparent that we would liave to serve as

that export department, and so we got into ])usi-

ness. It was also very apparent that a h)()S(»ly

formed, unincor})orated grou]) was not in ])osition

to handle business and to deal with banks and to

arrange credits, and so a natural sequence was that

w^e took action to incorporate. At the same time we

did take in some additional members, expanding the

sco|)e of the organization.

Q. Well, then, is it a truthful statcnnent to say

that you incorporated so as to get the advantages

of a corporation?

A. We incorporated, you might say, to get the

advantages and yet, in order

Mr. Wallace (Interposing) : If Your Honor

I)lease, 1 think counsel should list the advantages

first before he asks the general question.

The Witness: We found there were some disad-

vontages, too.

Mr. Wallace: I will withdraw the objection,

counsel; it is all right. Counsc^l has suggested that

we sti])ulate that this corporation was not fornuHl

imder the California laws with respect of non-])rofit

co-o])erative organizations, [73] and it was not so

formed. Jt was formed under the regulai* Cali-

fornia cor])orate statutes without reference to a

non-profit organization.

Mr. Murray: That is the stipulation that I
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wanted, and I think that is all, if you Honor please,

with this witness.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, you made counsel for the gov-

ernment ask you a question or two with respect of

the various footages sold by the various corpora-

tions that entered into the distribution of the funds.

I call your attention to the report of the minutes

of June 9, 1941, and call your attention to the sec-

ond page. There is a list there of the various mem-

bers, with various footages and percentages after

their names.

Are those the percentages, first the footage of

lumber sold by each of your member corporations,

and then the percentage of the total?

A. This list represents all shipments for the

fiscal year ending May 31st, and after each mem-

ber's name ajjpears the total footage shipped dur-

ing the year, and the percentage of that footage as

to the entire total.

Mr. Wallace: With counsers and the Court's

permission, I will just hand this long list to the

Reporter, and [74] ask her if she will write that

into the record. Then you will have it accurately.

If we may just pass this a moment. Your Honor,

I will see if we have a copy of the entire minute.

Counsel for the government suggests it all go in,

and if we can find a coj)y, we will ])ut the duplicate

in.
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By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, in answiq* to one of the (jues-

tions propounded by Mr. Murray, you called your-

self a one-man organization. What do you mean

by that?

A. W(»ll, the duties of keeping tlic minutes,

making the sales and collections and paying the

bills, all seemed to fall ui)on nie at that time. Later

we did exi)and it, and I should give credit to my
associates, but in the first ])lace, the organization

was more or less conceived by me, and I contacted

members of the industry, and induced them to come

in, and during those subsequent years I handled

all the details.

Q. What about the year in question ,'40- '41 I

A. The year in question, we had a hirger vol-

ume, and had an office here as well as in Washing-

ton, and while we had very com])etent help here in

San Francisco, it was natural that I .should con-

tinue to handle perha])s many of tlu^ details which

might have well been droj)])ed by me, hut 1 did con-

tinue to handle, such as taking cai-e ot* the inimites,

and I am still consequently in touch with all the

details. [75]

Q. With reference to tlu^ minute book and to

the vai'ious miinites that were read, counsel asked

you as to how those came to be prepared. I want

to ask you whether the mimites contained in this

book to which reference has been made accurately

reflect the transactions held at the meetings of the

board of directors of the American I>ox Shook Ex-

port Association? A. They do.
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Q. And when you wrote up the minutes you

were writing up the minutes after a meeting had

been held for the purpose of recording what had

been done at that meeting?

A. That's right, and the minutes in all instances

named exactly those who were present, and none

others.

Mr. Wallace: If Your Honor please, I have

found an additional copy of the minutes of the

meeting of June 9, 1941, which the witness has

identified a moment ago, and which I would like

to put into evidence as the Petitioner's Exhibit 3.

Mr. Murray: No objection.

The Court : Exhibit 3.

(The document referred to was marked and

received in evidence as Petitioner's Exhibit No.

3.)

PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT No. 3

American Box Shook Export Association

Barr Building, Washington, D. C.

Crocker Building, San Francisco, Calif.

MINUTES OF ADJOURNED ANNUAL MEET-
ING OF STOCKHOLDERS OF THE
AMERICAN JiOX SHOOK EXPORT AS-
SOCIATION

Held at office of Western Box Distributors,

Monadnock Building, San Francisco, .lutic 9, 1941

—1:00 p.m. (adjourned from June 2, 1941.)
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Present

:

Stockholders Representative

American Box Corporation Albert Pearlman

Calif. Pine Box Distributors J. P. O'Brien and

A. W. Pinger

Dwight Lumber & Box Co W. A. Dwi^'ht

Western Box Distributors J. W. Kodjiers

Western Pine Mf^. Co. Ltd Grant Dixon

Ewauna Box Company C. W. Hornibrook

American Box Shook Export C. D. Hudson and

Association W. A. Clayton

The meeting was called to order hy l^resident J.

Walter Rodgers.

Minutes of the meetings of February 12, 1941

and June 2, 1941 were read and ai)i)roved.

The general financial report of the Association

was given by C. D. Hudson, general manager. He
stated that the taxable income at the end of the

fiscal year 1941 amounted to $13,317.6(). It was also

reported that a sufficient reserve had ])een set up

on the books to take care of pending claims.

A report on shijmients for the fiscal year ending

May 31, 1941, showed shipments by the various

members as follows: Footage Percentage

American Box Corporation 3,608,530 23.52

Brewer Pine Box Company 984,342 6.42

Calif. Pine Box Distributors 1,408,218 <).18

Dwight Ijumber & Box Company 570,600 3.72

Ewauna Box Company 429,353 2.80

Western Box Distributors 2,154,334 14.04

Western Pine Mi^. Co. Ltd. 1,979,359 12.90

Weyerhaeuser Sales Company
Kesterson Lumber Corp. 240,055 1.56

White Pine Sash Company 1,144,985 7.47

E. II. Barnes !)96,67() 6.99

New En^rland Box Co. 1,601,746 11.40

Total 15,118,192 100%
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Mr. Hudson reported on prospects for sales to

the United Kingdom and to South Africa.

Attention was called to a recent revision in the

Neutrality Act of 1939, regarding the execution of

Title Oaths, which necessitates a revision in the

resolution as adopted by the directors of the Asso-

ciation June 7, 1940.

On motion, duly seconded, the following revised

resolution was unanimously adopted

:

Resolved, that William A. Clayton, assistant

secretary of this corporation be, and he is here-

by authorized in the name of, and on behalf

of, this corporation to appoint an agent or

agents to sign and verify, by oath or affirma-

tion, statements, shipper's export declarations

and other documents including affidavits re-

quired for compliance with section 2, sub-sec-

tion C, of the Neutrality Act of 1939 relative

to goods, wares and merchandise exported from

San Francisco, California, or from any other

port or ports of the continental United States,

with full power and authority in such agent, or

agents, to do everything whatsoever requisite

or necessary to be done in said matters; said

William A. Clayton is further authorized to

evidence the authority of such agent or agents

by powers of attorney executed by him in Wn^

name of this cor])oration and over th(^ coi por-

ate seal, such powers of attorney to be in such

form as from time to time may be required.
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The stockholders then elected the followini,^ di-

rectors for the ensuing year:

American Box Corporation—Albert Pearlman.

E. H. Barnes Company—E. J. Mamiintr.

Brewer Pine Box Company—Oscar Z. Brewer.

Calif. Pine Box Distributors—J. F. O'Brien.

Dwight Ebr. & Box Company—Ward A. Dwight.

Kesterson Lbr. Cor])oration— I. J\. Kesterson.

New England Box Com])any—Nathan Tufts.

Western Box Distributors—J. AValter Rodgers.

Western Pine Mfg. Co., Ltd.—Grant Dixon.

White Pine Sash Company—H. O. Klo})}).

Weyerhaeuser Sales Company—Thos. McCulloch.

On motion bv Mr. Hornibrook, seconded bv Mr.

Dwight, the following resolution was unanimously

adoi)ted

:

Resolved, that the acts of Dir(H*tors as such

of the American Box Shook Exj)()rt Associa-

tion during the fiscal year ending June 1, 1941,

be hereby confirmed, ratified and ap])roved.

Meeting was adjourned at 3:00 p.m.

W. A. CLAYTON,
Assistant Secretary

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Hudson, you refencd duiing your cross-

examination to a CalifoiMiin license. I assume by

that you meant the articles of i]U'orj)()]'atinii ? [TfJ]

A. That's right.



Commissioner of IntervfiJ Rercmie

Mr. Wallace: That is all.

Mr. Murray: That is all.

The Court: You are excused.

(Witness excused.)

Mr. Wallace: Mr. J. F. O'Brien.

Whereupon,

J. F. O'BRIEN

called as a witness for and on behalf of the Peti-

tioner, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

The Clerk: May we have your name, please?

The Witness: J. F. O'Brien.

The Clerk: J. F. O'Brien, thank you.

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Where is your residence, Mr. O'Brien?

A. San Francisco.

Q. And what is your business?

A. General Manager of the California Pine Box
Distributors.

Q. Is the California Pine Box Distributors a

manufacturing or a sales organization?

A. It is a co-operative selling organization.

Q. And what ])roducts does it sell? [77]

A. Box shook.

Q. Is that organization a member of the Ameri-

can Box Shook Ex2:)ort Association?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. When did it become a member?

A. 1939.

Q. Do you recall what part of 1939?

A. Along in the fall.

Q. And were you then tlie Manager of the Cali-

fornia Pine Box Distributors?

A. At that time I was the secretary and treas-

urer. I became Manager tlic^ first of 1940, Feb-

ruary 1st of 1940.

Q. How did California Pine Jiox Distributors

come to be a member of this Association?

A. Well, we became interested in some export

business, and we knew that an export Association

was functioning. Mr. Hudson had bcHMi for years

secretary-manager of the National Wooden Box As-

sociation, and our mills belonged to his trade As-

sociation and we knew that he had develo])ed an ex-

port association in conjmiction with some of the

other members of the Wooden Box Association, and

we just wanted in. We either wanted to get in that

one, or else form another one, because we wanted

some export business.

Q. Who did you discuss that with ?

A. With Mr. Hudson. [78]

Q. AVere you, after your California Pine Box

Disti'ibutors became a memb(^r of ihv Amei'ican ]>ox

Shook Ex})ort Association, did you become a di-

rector of American Box Shook? A. Yes.

i}. Have you remained such. A. Yes, sir?

(^. W^'i'e you not the fii'st secretaiy and treas-

ui-er of the incorporated American Box Shook Ex-

port Association? A. Yes, sir.



Commissioner of Internal Revenue 97

(Testimony of J. F. O'Brien.)

Q. You were secretary and treasurer, I believe,

during the period of 1940 to 1941 ?

A. I believe so.

Q. Did your Association, the California Pine

Box Distributors, make any contracts of sale v^ith

American Box Shook Export Association during

the year from June 1, 1940 to May 31, 1941?

A. We made verbal commitments to them, to

the Association, yes.

Q. Well, what were those commitments? What
do you mean by ^'verbal commitments''?

Mr. Murray: Object to that as being incom-

petent, irrelevant and immaterial in this case, what

verbal conmiitments were made to this cor])oration

between the stockholders and the corporation.

The Coui-t: Objection overruled. [79]

Mr. Murray: May I have an exception, please?

A. Well, Mr. Hudson would come out from the

East and tell us that he thinks he can sell so much
of a certain commodity, we will say for illustration,

orange boxes for shipment within a certain date

and a certain period, and ''How many cars could

you furnish, or do you want to furnish,'' or ''Do

you want any?" He would ask each of the in-

dividual mills, and we would check with our vai*i-

ous mills—we represented ten different mills—to

determine how much we could take of a ])articular

orange contract that he had a chance to sell. After

we found that we could furnish a certain quantity,

we would make a commitment to Mr. ITudson, and

naturally inquire from him the price we expected
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to get, and he would tell us what he thought he

could guarantee us as a minimum, and if we were

satisfied we made a commitment to furnish.

Q. How then did you bill or invoice?

A. We invoiced at the j)rice we discussed when

we made the commitment, when Mr. Hudson came

out and we made a commitment of a certain (juan-

tity at a certain minimum price, and that was the

price that we invoiced at.

Q. You referred to another minimum price.

Was there any other price?

A. Not unless we had a i)rofit.

Q. Now unless who had a profit?

A. Unless he secured additional realization. [80]

Q. And then what hai)pened?

A. We expected to gi'i it.

Q. Well, if he did make additional realization,

then what ha])pened?

A. If he did not make one?

Q. If he did make one, then what hap])ened?

A. Then we would ^i't it.

Q. Did you bill for it or not?

A. In some cases we billed for it. In other

words, at the end of the year, wIhmi wc closed our

own books and we wanted to determine whether we

had any money coming, why, we invoiced the As-

sociation after action by our board, that they were

going to j)ay so nuich.

Q. Let me get the ])arties straightened out. You
say 'Sve-' and '^our board." I want to get the dis-
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tinction between '' California Pine Box Distribu-

tors/' whom you represented, and '* American Box

Shook Export Association," of which you were a

director and the secretary and treasurer. We are

talking about contracts of sale between your Cali-

fornia Pine Box Distributors and American Box

Shook Export Association.

What did California Pine Box Distributors do

wdth respect of these minimum billings'?

A. Well, we invoiced the American Box Shook

Export Association at the minimum price, and that

is all we did until later, if I would attend a meet-

ing of the Export Association [81] and as a direc-

tor of the Association learn that it was contem-

plated paying another dollar per thousand to cer-

tain shipments, then I would go back to our office

and set up a debit against the Association.

Q. By '^our office" you mean California Pine

Box Distributors?

A. California Pine Box Distributors.

Q, And they would then bill for an additional

amount, is that correct? A. That's correct.

Q. Mr. O'Brien, I show you one of a number of

checks, all of which have been introduced here as

Petitioner's Exhibit 2, and ask you if among those

checks was one paid to your Association?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the amount? A. $704.11.

Q. Do you know how that amount was calcu-

lated?
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A. Yes, it was calculated on the basis of footage

first.

Q. I show you the minutes of an annual meet-

ing of the stockholders of the American Box Shook

Export Association, held June 9, 1941, and which

had been introduced into evidence as Petitioner's

Exhibit 3. I call your ])articular attention to the

number of items at the toj) of the second [82] i)age.

Does the name of your company a])pear there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q
A
Q
A
Q
A
D

California Pine Box Distributors?

Yes, sir.

What is the first item after

Footage, 1,408,218 feet.

And the next item ?

Percentage, 9.18 per cent.

Do you know to what those figures and that

percentage refer ?

A. I assume that they mean what they say they

do, but 1 leave it to our bo()kkee])er to check the

figures. In other words, if I said 1,408,000, it might

be 1,406,000, if there is an error, but generally we

check them w^hen we get the remittance.

Q. That is footage percentage that you sold to

the American Box Shook Association in that year?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the percentage of tlie total?

A. Y(\s, sir. J don't believe that we had billed

the Association in that paiticulai* yeai* for it. I

think W(^ started that practice subscciueiitly, the

billings.
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Q. You mean you don't think you billed the As-

sociation before you got that particular check? [83]

A. I wouldn't testify that we did. I would

rather want to check our records.

Q. Do you know whether you got a letter similar

to the letter addressed to the Western Box?

A. Yes, we have that letter.

Q. Now, Mr. O'Brien, this arrangement that

you have testified to, under which your California

Pine Box Distributors Association sold lumber to

American Box Shook Export Association, did that

preliminary billing price arrangement continue

throughout this fiscal year of June 1, 1940 to May
31, 1941? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Has it continued since? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Has there been any change ?

A. We have never made a sale except with the

understanding that it is preliminary, that any ad-

ditional realization is ours.

Mr. Wallace: That is all.

Mr. Murray: No questions.

The Court: You are excused.

(Witness excused.)
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"Whereupon,

J. W. RODOERS

called as a witness for and on bclialf of the Peti-

tioner, having [84] been tirst duly sworn, was ex-

amined and testified as follows:

J )irect Examination

The Clerk: May we have your name?

The Witness: J. W. Rodgers, R-o-d-g-e-r-s.

By Mr. Wallace:

Q. Mr. Rodgers, wdiere is your residence?

A. In San Jose.

Q. And what is your business?

A. Lumber and box business.

Q. Are you an officer or a director of any lum-

ber or box association or business?

A. I am president of the Western Box Distribu-

tors and vice-i)resident of the Lassen Lumber and

Box Company.

Q. What is the AVestern J^ox Distributors?

A. It is a sales agency, selling the product of

five manufacturers, box manufacturers.

Q. Does that Western Box Distributors belong

to the American Box Shook Exj^ort Association, is

it a member?

A. Yes, we are a member.

Q. When did it become a member?

A. In 1939, either November or December. I

don't have the exact date.

Q. Under what circumstances did it become a

member?
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A. As a result of the War, the export box busi-

ness [85] switched from the Scandinavian coun-

tries to the United States. The Scandinavian coun-

tries were blockaded, and Mr. Hudson had made

some surveys. We w^ere all anxious to participate

in the export business. It seemed more profitable

and we needed additional volume. Mr. Hudson

came to California and discussed the matter with

us, and we became a member on his solicitation. In

fact, we were delighted to do so.

Q. Did you—and by *^you" I am now referring

to your Association, Western Box Distributors,

—

ever make any sales of lumber in the export trade

through the American Box Shook Export Associa-

tion? A. Not lumber, we sold box shook.

Q. I beg your pardon. That is a lawyer^s mis-

take.

Did you ever sell any box shook?

A. Yes, we sold box shook continuously from

the time of our membership.

Q. Did you have any agreements or understand-

ing with the American Box Shook Export Associa-

tion as to the terms of those sales?

A. Mr. Hudson would indicate a price tliat he

could afford to i)ay us. Sometimes it was agreeable

to us, and sometimes it wasn't. He would tell us

that there was a ceiling- price, and any additional

realization we would naturally ])artici])ato in, that

amount being uncertain, all de|)ending on what liis

overhead was and his claims, and everythinsj: [8()]

connected with the Export Association.
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(Testimony of J. W. Rodgers.)

Q. Did that arrangement continue through this

fiscal year?

A. Well, it was our undcrstaonding from the

outset that that was the arrangement.

Q. Has there been any variation in that ar-

rangement from the time you became a member to

this moment"?

A. Only in the matter of realization that we got.

Q. You mean only in the matter of the amount ?

A. The matter of the amount of realization that

we got. The amounts varied from year to year, de-

pending on the vohime handled.

Q. And you received a realization dependent

upon your prorata of the amount of business?

A. Our participation per thousand feet board

measure.

Q. And that arrangement continued throughout

all the period that you have been a member?

I understand, Mr. Rodger, you were the first

])resident? A. That's right.

Q. And you continued to be such, 1 take it, dur-

ing the first year of the corporation?

A. That's correct.

Q. What are the duties of the president? W^hat

did he do? [87]

A. Very little except to preside at meetings.

Q. Who ran the organization?

A. Mr. Hudson, the secretary—or the manager.

Mr. Wallace: I think that is all.

Mr. Murray: No questions.

The Couit: You are excused.

(Witness excused.)
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Mr. Wallace: l\^titioner rests.

The Court: Any witnesses on behalf of the Re-

spondent ?

Mr. Murray: No further evidence, just the re-

turn which I have already placed in evidence.

The Court: You may file briefs under the rule.

The Clerk: The main brief will be due Novem-

ber 4th, reply briefs November 19th.

Mr. Murray: May I have thirty days for that

reply brief in this case, if Your Honor please, in

view of the time lost in sending it back and for-

w^ard? I really believe I want to file a reply in this

case, and fifteen days would hardly give me time.

The Court: Thirty days to both parties.

Mr. Wallace: Thank you, Your Honor.

The Clerk : November 4th and December 4th.

Mr. Wallace: Thank you.

(Whereupon, at 11 :30 a.m. Wednesday, Sep-

tember 20, 1944, the hearing in the above-en-

titled matter was closed.) [88]

[Endorsed] : T.C.U.S. Filed Oct. 14, 1944.

[Title of Tax Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR REVIEW

Appellant files this its Petition for Review by

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit of the Decision of the above entitled

Tax Court, rendered April 11, 1945, and for

grounds of petition alleges:
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I.

Appellant filed with the Collector of Tiiternal

llevenue for the First District of California it^ in-

come and excess profits tax returns for the fiscal

year ended May 31, 1941. That said Collector's

office is within the Nintli Circuit of the United

States Circuit Courts of Appeals.

II.

That the nature of the controversy i^ the liability

of Appellant for income and excess profits taxes for

the fiscal year ended May 31, 1941 in the res])ective

amounts of $1952.15 and $1270.32, which amounts

were assessed as deficiencies by [116] A])pellee for

said year, and involves the question as to whether

or not, as a matter of law, A])])ellant, a corporation

rei^istered under the Webb Pomerene Act for the

j)urpose of engai^ing in export trade only, is liable

for such nicome and excess j)rofits taxes where its

sole business and oblie:ation is to expoii: lumber

])roducts for its members without })rofit to itself.

Also whether, assuming' it was liable for income and

excess profits taxes, the sum of $7,559.11, paid by

appellant to its members during* the fiscal year as

additional realization on sales, was ])ro})erly ex-

cluded from tlie income tax returns filed by A])-

pellant as income of Ap])ellant; and whethei' the

sum of $4,000.00 claimed as a deduction by Aj)-

pellant as a reserve for anticipated and contingent

claims was a pro])er deduction as a matter of law.

A})pellee denies the right of A])])ellant to claim

such exem])ti()u and the right of a})pellant in any
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event to make such deductions which contentions

were sustained by the Tax Court of the United

States in its Decision of April 11, 1944.

Respectfully submitted,

W. R. WALLACE, Jr.

Attorney for Appellant.

Service is hereby acknowledged of a copy of the

foregoing this 5th day of July, 1945.

(Signed) J. P. WENCHEL,
Chief Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue [117]

[Endorsed] : T.C.U.S. Filed July 5, 1945.

[Title of Tax Couii and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OP RECORD

To the Clerk of The Tax Court of the United

States

:

Appellant above named hereby designates as the

portion of the record, proceedings and evidence to

be contained in the record on appeal in the above

matter the following, to-wit:

1. Petition of Aj)pellant herein for redetermina-

tion of deficiency filed herein, together with exhibits

thereto attached;

2. Answer of Appellee to said Petition

;

3. Opinion i)romulgated February 12, 1945.

4. Transcript of Testimony in question and an-

swer form taken and received before the Honoi-

able Ernest H. Van Fossan, on September 20th,
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1944, together with any and all exhibits offered and

received at said hearing. [118]

Dated June 18th, 1945.

W. R. WALLACE, Jr.

Attorney for Api)ellant.

Service of a copy of the foregoing is hereby

acknowledged this 5th day of July, 1945.

(Signed) J. P. WENCHEL,
Chief Counsel, I3ureau of In-

ternal Revenue. [119]

[Endorsed] : T.C.U.S. Filed July 5, 1945.

[Title of Tax Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE

I, B. D. Gamble, clerk of The Tax Court of the

United States do hereby certify that the foregoing

l)ages, 1 to 119, inclusive, contain and are a true

copy of the transcrii)t of record, pa})ers, and pro-

ceedings on file and of record in my office as called

for by the Praecipe in the a])peal (or a})])eals) as

above numbered and entitled.

In testimony whereof, I hereunto set my hand

and affix the seal of The Tax Court of the Ignited

States, at Washington, in the District of Columbia,

this 19th day of July, 1945.

(Seal) B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, The Tax Court of the

United States.
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[Endorsed]: No. 11115. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Ameri-

can Box Shook Export Association, a Corporation,

Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent. Transcript of the Record. Upon Peti-

tion to Review a Decision of The Tax Court of the

United States.

Filed August 3, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 11115

AMERICAN BOX SHOOK EXPORT
ASSOCIATION,

Appellant,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DESIGNATION OF THE RECORD

The Appellant hereby designates the entire rec-

ord as certified to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit as the record

upon which it tends to rely.
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Dated: San Francisco, California, August 8,

1945.

W. R. WALLACE,
Attorney for Appellant, American Box Shook Ex-

port Association.

[Endorsed]: Filed August 10, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

CONCISE STATEMENT OF THE POINTS
UPON WHICH APPELLANT INTENDS
TO RELY

I.

That an association, whether incorporated under

specific statutes relating to non-profit cooperative

associations, or otherwise, which does business with

its members only under ccmtracts with those mem-
bers which preclude the possibility of i)rofit to the

association, is not subject to income or excess profits

taxes as a matter of law.

II.

That a corporation, organized under the Webb
Pomerene Act conducting no business excei)t the

sale of the products of its members in the export

trade mider contracts with its members wliich ])]e-

clude the })ossibility of ])rofit to the association,

may ])roper]y withhold a portion of tlie sums re-

alized from such sales in tlie cxpoi't trade to cover

the cost of doing such business and a reasonable

reserve for contingencies and distribute all of the
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balance of such realizations from such sales to its

members without being liable for income or excess

2)rofits taxes, either upon such reserves or the sums

so distributed to its members.

III.

That the payment by the association to its mem-

bers of the smn of $7,559.11 during the year in

question was not in the nature of a dividend, but

was made under the contractual relationships be-

tween the association and its members and rei)re-

sented the payment by the association to its mem-

bers of sums which belonged, not to the association,

but to the members.

WILLIAMSON & WALLACE
Attorneys for Appellant

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 10, 1945. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.




